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Financial Highlights

B 75 48 B

2015 2014
=F-Iif% ZT—Q0OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T AR T T
Revenue L 232,181 294,649
Cost of Sales & AR A (143,893) (184,417)
Gross Profit EF 88,288 110,232
Selling & distribution costs HERDHEEX (89,629) (144,544)
Administrative expenses THER (52,831) (87,810)
Loss from operations EEBE (106,823) (113,711)
Taxation IE - —
Loss attributable to equity shareholders EnFHAEAREEE (110,578) (115,541)
Loss per share (RMB yuan) BEAEE(ARET) 0.038 (0.040)
Gross margin ESV 38.0% 37.4%
Net loss ratio FBEX -47.6% —-39.2%
Revenue by Product Category
WMARERER D
86.2% 87.0%

3.1%

2H2015 D15 ( 1H2014

(RMB’000) “Z_RmE —B_RE —B_pE —B_NE
(AEWT ) THEF L¥EF I F¥E
. Shampoo & hair-care products 109,390 90,667 126,991 129,483

REEEER

Skincare products 3,053 4,085 7488 6,506

ERER
. Other household and personal care products 18,762 6,224 18,481 5610

HittRABAZEEER

Total

Axt 131,205 100,976 152,960 141,689

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7



Financial Highlights
M=

Revenue by Brand

LON:3.n) - g

79.0%

77.8%

0.3%

1.1%

10.1%

11.1%

2H2015

! 1H2014
(RMB’000) 2T —E-_mF —EB-|mE
(ARHF 1) TyE THE |, L¥F

B

i 106,868 76,663 122,510 106,699

g%a' Wind 12,526 10,968 14,257 18,574

Herborn

R 2,984 3513 5574 5.447

Litao

s 8,731 9,287 8,704 9,820

;ggjf %6 545 1,915 1,149

o 131,205 100,976 152,960 141,689
\_
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EE

BITESE

B RUR (=)

BLE
(R-—FE—AF+_-ANHEFT)

P IF %8

=ER oA
BIAFERITES

Z212 1818 1 php, cPA, FCCA, FOIS, FCS (P.E)
TNE
3R 32 % Foa cPa

ERKkREREELZES

ZR1Z W18+ php, cPa, Feoa Fois, Fes (PE) (£ /)

R 2 28 Foa, cPA

FNEES

EWE(EE)

B
(R-—FE—AF+_-ANHET)

BRIZE & 1H £ PrD, CPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (PE)

REBER-_F-—AF+-_ANBEZE)

REEES
B RUR (£ /5)

FRE &8 I pPrp, cPA, FOCA, FOIS, FCS (PE)

NAME
== WA cPA
RERR
PR IF %8

HEM ora
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Corporate Information

LFREH
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Cayman Islands
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Baiyun District
Guangzhou
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PRC

Place of business in Hong Kong

Suite B, 16/F
Ritz Plaza

122 Austin Road
Tsimshatsui
Kowloon

Hong Kong

Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
31/F., 148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands principal share
registrar and transfer office

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

AMREE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PEIEREFME

Hh

& M

HERE

Y EBN
HLPR 18157618
4% : 510410

BEBERME

BB

JLEE

EN/ ]
i+ @ B 1225%
BHTHR L
161EB=E

BEREEZBETE

EEBEFESELBRAT
BB

it A

T RIE 14855311

FEHERZBFERAE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Annual Report 2015 —Z — A F F

05



Corporate Information

LFRH

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43rd Floor, The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Legal advisor on Hong Kong law

PETER YUEN & ASSOCIATES

(IN ASSOCIATION WITH FANGDA PARTNERS)
26/F, One Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

Company’s website

www.bawang.com.cn

Stock code

01338

Principal bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
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B BLEm

SR (BE) GFENEBHMAERRA A
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R E 434

BBAERER

Bo % e 2 B 5 7% P

(Bt EiB™ T ERE =)

BEPIR
R E58%
R 5 E5 152612

NCIEE R

www.bawang.com.cn
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01338

FEERRT
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Chairman’s Statement
FEMREE

Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board of directors of BaWang International (Group)
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | present the audited annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board reports that the total revenue of the continuing
operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately RMB232.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 21.2% from approximately RMB294.6 million in
2014. The operating loss from the continuing operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB106.8 million, representing an improvement by approximately
6.1%, as compared with the operating loss of approximately
RMB113.7 million in 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the net loss from the
continuing operations of the Group was approximately RMB110.6
million, as compared with the net loss of approximately RMB115.5
million in 2014. The Group was able to optimize its resources,
resulting in a decrease in net loss from the continuing operations
as compared with 2014.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company improved to
approximately RMB110.6 million as compared with the
attributable loss of approximately RMB116.5 million for 2014.

For further information on the operating performance of the
Group, please refer to the Financial Review section of this annual
report.

During the year under review, the Group continued to implement
stringent cost control measures. The successful implementation
of the ongoing value-chain-oriented business model has enabled
the Group to improve the operating results of the continuing
operations by reducing the selling, distribution and administration
costs in the amount of approximately RMB39.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015, as compared with those in 2014.

BNEBNEQRTZRER:

AAERRETEBR(EE)ERER
ARAI([RRABRNDNZESTE RMEERRE
ERARALRERBAR(HBIERE
BHDEz—_ZT—AHF+_A=+—H
LEFENKEZFEEE -

BEEEREAEEHE_ZT—HF+
TR+ HLEFENBELEXER
WL A ARE22HE T &
—E-MOFERBPHOARE2468E T
TRHBRTH212% - AEBEHE-_ZT—H
F+_AZ+-HUEFEHBSRBEK
EEBHNLCEBENABARK1068H
BT R-_TE-NFERPECLEBEBROA
REAI37TEBEITNE T46.1% °

AREEBHEE-_T—HAF+_A=+—
BIEFESRSHECLEEBNEEIR
HEAREO0ESE T M_ZF—MN©
FRHPHFSFERHARBI15588
T AEBREEBLER  FEEEER
EEBRR T —ERHERMD -

ARFRBEEAREFABBRAEEY
ARB06EET M_T—MFEE
R SEEFABROARE1165

- —

ER--Yk

ARARBREXGEFAEN  F2H
REFZRERNMBCBEED o

REBEFERN  AEBEBERTERBYN
RAZES T L - BE-_T—HAF+-H
St HUEFEMNHEXRAMBEE K
DHEAXMITRER B _F—NFRH
HIRL SENARK0BET  #
MEAEBREEFELEEB 2K
e
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Chairman’s Statement

FEHBESE

08

Looking forward, we focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends
to continue building up a management team with strong
experience in both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain
the sales growth momentum and profitability, and to improve
investors’ confidence on the Group. In the long run, the Group will
continue to focus on strengthening the business model and
positioning to acquire market shares from domestic and
international competitors, maintaining a multi-brand and multi-
product strategy in HPC sectors, and becoming a leader in the
branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all Shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016

EARK - ENIRE BRI EL A &
IaiREP MEMERRMERBS 2 EBET
MEREMTEH MREHAMNS  ~5EE
RMEBETBERNIINEERRERMBEAZ
BUTRRYE=EKBNERERK - KE
HEBRBBEBMANE S ARET
REEHAEENEL HEBEMS -
AEEREEZEERENXREML -
BT IS AE B R KD BB NI RS
F o REF %E&TIJ\ & 1% 7 oo oon R MEE
mMEEKCNETERBRKBE2IRFTE
BRERKEAEEEREELE -

ERLEE ARRESFERATHAER

LYEBAEENZERE B HE
mEmoRIT BEALMES  BUARD
RIRE o

FR BB

TE

5% Z—RE=ZA=-+—H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Zal il

& 12 B 5

Business Review

The Group has been using the popular events and festive seasons
for carrying out marketing campaigns and promotions for
publicizing its branded products. During the year under review,
the on-going promotion slogan for Bawang branded shampoo
was “Scary of hair-fall, use Bawang shampoo (185 - A% ).
As at 31 December 2015, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 482 distributors and 39 KA retailers,
covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China.
Furthermore, the products of the Group were also sold in Hong
Kong, Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia and Australia.

For Bawang and Royal Wind branded products, the Group took
an optimization program to close those loss-making retailer
systems, to re-negotiate the terms of business with distributors,
to eliminate the obsolete inventory in the channels, to streamline
the establishment of the sales and marketing teams, and to
implement new performance measurement systems for the sales
teams.

7% Bl B

AEEBNARTEHMEBBRKART
HABMMEEREER  REBEFE
N BERBEEKRNSEEEORR
ez ABEl-B=2—_F—AF+
“A=t—B BEImEsBERGERE
K488 7 HE MIOEEHTER -
BETH27EEAO RMOEEED - It
S ZRFEMMEETE K - 3
CERPERARANTTISHEE -

HRBEINERMEESR  KNEBRE
BRE RIEBLBEENEE RR
BEHBEN BRI IRF - HILRE
B ZURBENEHER LHHE
BEARITH M E BB R -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEMRE S
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BB - £ 8B £ 3K

CRIEA ERBK HEEH T

During the year under review, the Group further expanded the
channel for supplying Royal Wind shampoo and shower gel to
business hotel chains in China. The Group was promoting the
brand image of Royal Wind shampoo with the marketing theme
“Anti-dandruff in Speedy and Natural Manner (1% 38 2 & 8 X #R)".
As at 31 December 2015, the Royal Wind brand distribution
network comprised approximately 482 distributors and 29 KA
retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China.

The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergent targeting at consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Company’s goal is to widen the market
coverage in China. As at 31 December 2015, the Litao products
distribution network comprised approximately 482 distributors
and four KA retailers covering 27 provinces and four municipalities
in China.

REOBEFEER AEEE-FEREE
N EERIEEKMAABRGTEE
EBEEBE  AEBEEATREE
BERAISITERBRERILENK - #H
E_ET-RF+ZA=+t—H EAm
WD A8 A B R K482 18 7 $5 7 K2 29
HEEHTER BETEH27EEH LT
EEEN -

BEERIZAMBEMERRA
B ARBE =B mEEEERBR
EPHE -AEENBEREEMHHEEA
EEEAFE -BE_FT—AF+-A=
T—H EEmEOHEBKERENM
aREDHEmMhMEERTER B2
RE27EE D R EEED -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEREMRE S

The Group’s Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products target
white-collar ladies in the age range of 18 to 45 who have relatively
high net income and are dedicated to pursue a healthy and
natural lifestyle. In terms of sales channels, the Group is now
selling the products mainly through cosmetics specialty shops
throughout China. As at 31 December 2015, the sales and
distribution network for the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare
products comprised approximately 87 distributors and one KA
retailer covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China. The
Group also had about 5,500 counters in cosmetics specialty
shops in China.

During the year under review, we were selling our natural plant
skincare products series, Smerry, through established chain-
stores. The Smerry branded products target young ladies in the
age range of 18 to 28 who are dedicated to pursue a natural and
healthy lifestyle.

During the year under review, the Group has established online
flagship stores for our Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded
products at eight online retailing platforms in China.

AEENTEEREREER — ~AEE
HEREFPHERSAAHERS MK
ABREKBEEANEERTN - F
BT 185 £465% B B A & 1 o 7E #H
ERETE AKEBRETEEANE
HRBLEEBHEAEEEM - BE
—E-AF+tZRA=+—RH XrEEm
o HBRBRABeTE Y R &k —
EEXTER BETE27@EEH LT
EEEm EPEREAN AEETER
#)5,500 K Lt on P JE HHE

REIBFEN - BM®iER S EHE K
HERMMRAEYVEBERIER —
EFA-EEAREERNBEZHER
EHARARBREOEEFN - FHRNMI8
RE28BR I FE 2 o

REBEHAR AEEEEN\EARLTE

FERURLEEEHERE  BEM
REZEmBER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year under review, we obtained the recognitions as
follows:

— We obtained a Certificate of Accreditation on Work Safety
Standardization (Grade 3) in Light Industry (% & 4 E 2%
(=% (ET) from the Guangzhou Association of
Work Safety. The accreditation is valid for three years until

2HEE G

FtEPE SEERESRR RN

TE (W) AMRAE:

ZRELNE, B, FAFGEF, o5 kiEG
FERRIKITEDUang RS EH R RENEESE,
H & AT, AR

ﬂgl

—  We were accredited as “The 2014 Major Taxpayer & Elite
Enterprise of Baiyun District, Guangzhou (E/NT H E & =
T-MEEMH KPP EF M XE) by the Working
Committee of Baiyun District People’s Government in
Guangzhou in May 2015.

REBE#MA - RPAESTATRE:

- HZMESTEMZZ2EEHESR
ENRELEEREC=ZREXE(E
T) ZEREBRPR=FE_
E—N\FXRRA-

lnfluentféleﬂds. prasents

BaWang

TOP BRAND 2015 WINNER

HERBAL SHAMPOO

=

g v o Ayl

it i f s s o

b G 2

CERTIFICATE
SEHR G- HACBOITIN201500714
BE (M) AT
BaF iR =R El
®I)

HHME: T0i8iEof

- ZZE-—HFHA HKFMEEMT
AERARBAREIBEMTAE
BE-_FT-OFERARAFPES L
ES
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEREMRE S

—  Our congratulatory messages for the Chinese New Year “Duang”
in connection with Bawang shampoo was awarded a Gold
Medal in Online Sales Category in the 7th China Advertisers
Summit & Awards Presentation Ceremony held by the
Organizing Committee of the China Advertisers Summit in
May 2015.

— Bawang brand was named one of “2015 Asia’s Influential
Brands” in November 2015.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

1. Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it is common for the Mainland manufacturing
enterprises to face continuous rising labour costs and
difficulties in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s
responding strategies are to reduce the production costs.

— —ET-AFERA BMEIBEBIXE
KB duang B 5% & #H | RO £ 5
tETEESTESRBEA
EhEESTESHEZTERER
mBEEE-

- —E—RAF+—A HFIREWE
TR AEI0IGFE T MEE R
>

FTERBEHBARZE

BRIFREELREEBTwmEDITIE
B E A AR AR ECR BHEF)
(BB EDIE622F)ETHEFNEH B
FTERRETHBAEZNT -

1. fTRRRE
M EERRAFERTE ST
RATE EREBEAF T AR

B o RSB e EERRE - LUREE
B e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREEBAMESH
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Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To
minimize credit risks, the management of the Group has
appointed dedicated staff members to handle procedures
for determining credit limits, credit approval and other
monitoring procedures, to ensure that follow-up actions with
all receivables are taken in a timely manner. In addition, the
Group reviews the collectibility of receivables at the end of a
reporting period, to ensure that sufficient impairment losses
are provided for in respect of uncollectible monies. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, no bad debts were
recorded by the Group.

Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and
maintains cash and cash equivalents at a level which is
considered by the management as sufficient, to satisfy the
needs arising from the Group’s operations and to mitigate
the effect of fluctuations of cash flow. The management
closely monitors the use of shareholders’ loan to ensure that
an appropriate level of external financing or borrowings
would be maintained.

EFRMERERRE

BB RS B R AL AR
WM AREEERR  AEH
EEECEEREABREER
CERE EEEHRAMES
TR - DL R AR R B IR B A MG
IR 3K o SN - AR o R R
B EE 2 AT E 5 bR
R %7 AT U B KB AR MR 02 R
EFEE - BE-F-HEEF+=A
St+—BLEE AEELRE
81515 -

i B E & R

EERPECRRE  A&KEE
ERMRBEERBRSRHBKF
ZHeMBHEFEER  UEMN
AEBEEEMBELRERSAE
KB zwE EEESEYESR
BRREEZEREBER BERAE
FEENINE REFKF -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEBFAWRR S W

4. Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign
currencies expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The
Group closely manages and monitors foreign exchange risks
to ensure that appropriate measures are taken in a timely
manner. The Group will consider using hedging in respect of
foreign currencies to mitigate relevant risks as and when
appropriate.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from the business operation. During the year under review, the
Group strictly complied with the PRC local environmental
regulations. The production of household and personal care
products is a light industry. No substance polluting the
environment will be released during the manufacturing process
and there is no adverse impact to the surrounding environment.
The Group has significantly reduced the power consumption as
well as the plant overhead costs by implementing energy
conservation project in recent years with positive results.

Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Litigation

The Board considers that the contents of the relevant article
published by Next Magazine on 14 July 2010 are defamatory to
the Group and/or amount to malicious falsehood. Therefore, we
commenced legal proceedings (the “Legal Proceedings”) in the
High Court of Hong Kong (the “High Court”) in October 2010
against Next Magazine seeking, inter alia, damages and an
injunction to restrain Next Magazine from publishing such
contents or similar contents. The trial of the Legal Proceedings
commenced on 2 March 2015 which lasted for a total of 40 days
and ended on 29 August 2015. The judge of the High Court
estimates that judgment will be ready for handing down before 30
April 2016. The Company will make further announcement in
relation to this matter in due course.

4. BWEMRE
HAE®RBEEEINT IS EE
B URAEEAZIINERTER
B AEEBGTYEERERI
PE R B o DAREGR Ko By Hb R EUE E
- AREEHEEERKRER
18 A S AR KA B R B

RIBRE

AEBBER/EBRELHRENT E K
BEE-ROBEFERN AEEZETH
BEMHREER KEREAZEERE
mEERBETITR LEBEPITE
BHERERRBSANDE  HEALER
BUYTEEXRTROTE - AEBEIF
S EHEITENREIRE - BB EREMAR
TNEBRZREBESE  THEEFEEREE
A -

EBER

REBEFERN AEEEETHAKH
BEAREZRABERIER -

AR AR

EExeRASBTIR-_ZE—ZFtA
THHAERNBERAEAXERNDT S A
HAEENHEL IBEFE- A
e BRPER_Z—ZE+AERES
xR ((EEERD MEATIRE LR
FA((EEFRRBD  HFP Z2XFTAT
BEEEAY B |FHRZAR AL
AR - BEREEFAE_T—RHF=A
“HRE RERFDRFE TR
TER-_ZE—RHFNAZT+ILBER
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RABEEERERLEEEELE —
WRE o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review

Continuing Operations

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue of the
continuing operations amounted to approximately RMB232.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately 21.2% from
approximately RMB294.6 million in 2014. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the slowdown of the economy in China
and the change in the business model of the traditional trade
channel since the second quarter of 2014.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB183.5 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
79.0% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing operations in
2015, and represented a decrease of approximately 19.9% as
compared to 2014.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB23.5 million in revenue,
which accounted for approximately 10.1% of the Group’s total
revenue of continuing operations in 2015, and represented a
decrease of approximately 28.4% as compared to 2014.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately
RMB18.0 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
7.8% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing operations in
2015, and represented a decrease of approximately 2.7% as
compared to 2014.

1 %5 51 B
BEEERE

REBEFEA AEEZEENRAR
BoR2EBIL R-_E—HFHAR
Boo4 6B BT NMETH21.2% TR
FTERAKBR TP BEEBENLBENE
My T —NFE_FTEEES
REKEEAHNE -

AEBZLGRE -~ L HEXSH
HARBASSEE L HhAEE
T hFEREELEERREXR
M79.0% L —_ZE—NWFETETH
19.9% ©

FEEEIBERE —BR - ER-F
—hAFEMNEETENAREK258E
B AREEBBEREERREHE
FEE101% L —_E—WFEEFETETH
28.4% o

AR AR EREA R EIK AR EM
RRBREMRY —BE HEXBOHA
RE180BE T WIEAKBE_T— %
FERBEREXBHRELEENTS.
T -—EETRTH27% -
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The branded Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB6.5 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 2.8% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing
operations in 2015, and represented a decrease of approximately
40.9% as compared to 2014,

Smerry generated approximately RMBO0.6 million in revenue,
which accounted for approximately 0.3% of the Group’s total
revenue of continuing operations in 2015.

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retail
networks. During the year under review, sales to our distributors
and retailers represented approximately 66.5% and approximately
33.5% of the Group’s total revenue of continuing operations
respectively.

In 2015, our products were sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand, Malaysia and Australia. The sales to these overseas
markets outside China accounted for approximately 5.1% of our
total revenue of continuing operations for 2015.

Cost of sales in 2015 amounted to approximately RMB143.9
million, representing a decrease of approximately 22.0%
compared to approximately RMB184.4 million in 2014. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in manufacturing
expenses, direct labour, raw materials and package materials
consumed.
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During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit decreased
to approximately RMB88.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 19.9% as compared to approximately RMB110.2
million for 2014. The gross profit margin increased from
approximately 37.4% for 2014 to 38.0% for 2015. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the decrease of cost of sales and the
change in the business model of the traditional trade channel as
mentioned above.

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately
RMB89.6 million for 2015, representing a decrease of
approximately 38.0% as compared to that for 2014. Such
decrease was mainly due to the effective cost controls leading to
the decrease in depreciation, advertising fee and the saving
achieved in promotion fee and salary through optimising the
resources of promotion staff. As a percentage of revenue, our
selling and distribution costs decreased from approximately
49.1% in 2014 to 38.6% in 2015.

Administrative expenses for 2015 amounted to approximately
RMB52.8 million, representing an increase of approximately
39.7% as compared to approximately RMB37.8 million in 2014.
Such increase was mainly due to the increase in legal and
professional fees and redundancy payments, which was partially
offset by the decrease in non-capitalisable research and
development expenditures. As a percentage of revenue, our
administration costs were approximately 22.8% and 12.8% in
2015 and 2014 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB54.4 million (2014: approximately RMB28.4 million) has been
recognised under other expenses following a valuation of the
property, plant and equipment in use in the continuing operations,
by reference to their value in use.
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The Group recorded reduced operating loss for the continuing
operations of approximately RMB106.8 million for 2015, as
compared to the operating loss of approximately RMB113.7
million for 2014. The decrease in operating loss for the continuing
operations was mainly because of the various cost optimization
measures persistently adopted by the Group resulting in a
decrease in selling, distribution and administration costs of
approximately RMB39.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, as compared to those of 2014. However, such decrease
was partially offset by the impairment loss of assets of
approximately RMB54.4 million (2014: approximately RMB28.4
million) for the above mentioned factor.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, finance income of the
Group amounted to approximately RMBO0.6 million as compared
with the finance income of approximately RMBO0.5 million for
2014,

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s imputed
interest on non-interest bearing loans from controlling
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB3.8 million (2014:
approximately RMB1.8 million).

The Group did not have any income tax in 2014 and 2015.

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded reduced loss of approximately RMB110.6
million for 2015, as compared to the loss of approximately
RMB115.5 million for 2014.

Discontinued Operation

The Board discontinued the production and sales of its herbal tea
products from 1 July 2013. During the year under review, no
revenue was attributable to the Group’s Herbal tea products and
this business segment recorded an operating loss of
approximately RMB3,000.
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Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded an improved attributable loss of approximately
RMB110.6 million for 2015, as compared with the attributable
loss of approximately RMB116.5 million for 2014.

Event after the Reporting Period

On 7 March 2016, the controlling shareholders of the Company
have agreed to extend the repayment date of the shareholders’
loan with the total amount of HK$16.5 million and USD6.7 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB54.9 million) to 31 December
2017. The Shareholders’ loan is unsecured, interest-free and can
be repayable earlier than the repayment date as determined by
the Group.

On 17 March 2016, an additional amount of HK$35.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB29.3 million) was advanced to
the Group by the controlling shareholders of the Company. The
loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31 December
2017 or earlier as determined by the Group.

Outlook

China’s the economic growth target of 2015 to around 7.0
percent and it registered an actual growth of 6.9 percent as China
continued to transform from an investment-driven economic
structure to the one mainly based on domestic consumption. This
is the slowest expansion in a quarter of a century. It is widely
expected that the top leadership will place priority on stable
growth with the emphasis on supply-side reform, aiming at
trimming overcapacity and lifting tax burdens on companies. As
indicated in its 13th Five-Year Plan, China expects an average
annual growth rate of at least 6.5% from 2016 through 2020.
Despite the persistent difficulties, some economists suggested
that China is capable of maintaining medium to high growth, as
the long-term economic fundamentals remain unchanged and
there is ample room for the government to maneuver, and that the
fluctuations in the market have not greatly affected the average
Chinese households in their domestic spending. The Directors
believe that China will strive to achieve its economic growth target
of 6.5 percent this year. To cope with the pressure arising from
the transition of China’s economy, the Group will adopt a prudent
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and conservative approach in its business development and
recovery model.

From the beginning of 2016, China adopted a two-child policy
which allows every couple to have two children. The Directors
believe that this policy will have a positive effect on the economy
and serves as a direct stimulus effect on the maternal and child
products. To capture this opportunity, the Group may roll out
personal and skin care products specifically for mother and child
segment in 2016.

With the appointment of the new chief executive officer, the main
operational theme for Group in 2016 is, “To gather the strength
for innovation (£t 1 £ -~ BIFTE)".

For the two shampoo and hair care products, namely, Bawang
and Royal Wind, the Group will enhance the quality of products as
always. To strengthen the brand image, the Group will roll out
new design and display for shops to increase the same-store
sales growth. To increase the sales, the Group will develop new
distributors and reactivate the dormant distribution channels.

For Bawang branded product series, the Group intends to
develop high-end herbal essence hair care bundle products to
satisfy the needs of the affluent consumer segment. To explore
the market segment for young consumers, the Group would roll
out advertising and publicity campaigns with the theme, “New
Idea: To prevent hair-fall whilst you are young (B i & - F &8 5
= 58)”. Additionally, the Group will enlarge its online sales platform
by cooperating new e-commerce companies so as to increase
the revenue stream from this channel.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group will continue
to enhance the brand recognition and image through dedicated
advertising channels and publicity campaigns to fit in the trendy
lifestyle of the young consumers. The Group will roll out high-end
anti-dandruff hair care products. The Group will also launch high-
end fragrance shower gels.

For Herborn branded products, the Group will roll out a high-end
Empress Herbal Skincare Series and several other herbal skincare
series. Internet and interactive social media will be used for the
marketing and promotion campaigns. Apart from the conventional
cosmetic specialty shops and counters, the Group will cooperate
with several popular online sales platforms to increase the sales
revenue.
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For Litao branded products, the Group will roll out a product
series of Chinese herbal based laundry detergent and softener to
the low-tier cities and townships in China. At the same time, the
Group will also roll out refreshing and healthy shower gels in family
packaging.

For production management, as a measure to enhance the quality
of products, performance pledges have been signed between the
Group and the workshop supervisors whereby performance
bonus will be awarded to those staff members who have achieved
the target. To create a sense of belonging for the frontline workers
and to recognize their organizational loyalty, the Group has
implemented an annual long service award presentation to honor
those workers who reach the specific milestone of services for the
Group. To look after the welfare and well-being of the frontline
workers, the Group would enhance the living conditions of the
dormitory by establishing recreational activities and educate the
frontline workers on the awareness of occupational health and
safety.

As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility with potential distributors for launching our
branded products to other countries. The Group is open to
explore further business opportunities with potential overseas
distributors.

As of the date of this annual report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor actively explore
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.

Looking forward, we focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the volatile
economic environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience
in both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales
growth momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’
confidence in the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue
to focus on strengthening the business model and positioning to
acquire market shares from domestic and international
competitors, maintaining a multi-brand and multi- product
strategy in HPC sectors, and becoming a leader in the branded
Chinese herbal HPC products.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies
and maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of
liquidity and financial resources is set out below:

REBEL MBERRER
S
7K S [ 5% 78 4% 7 #) 32 81 % B3 49 R

HRENTHRN - RBES MY HE
R EINET

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

REZZE-—H% RIZZ-OF

+=—A=+—H +=ZA=t+-—H

RMB in million RMB in million

ARBEER ARBEER

Cash and cash equivalent HWENREEBY 9.6 16.9
Total loans ERBE 54.9 441
Total assets BMEE 291.0 383.1
The gearing ratio’ BEBEXR 18.9% 11.5%

Note:

1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or disposal
of any of its subsidiaries or associate during the year under
review.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Related Hedge

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in China, with
most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency of
the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group
had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas
countries. The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong
Dollars or United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank
deposits are mostly denominated in Renminbi. The Company will
pay dividends in Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In
addition, the Group paid certain advertising fees in United States
Dollars or Hong Kong Dollars. The Directors are of the view that
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in
Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the Group’s operational
level is not significant. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had
not issued any material financial instruments or entered into any
material contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes.
However, the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure and are prepared to take prudent measures
such as hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2015.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2015, the capital commitment by internal
funding of the Group for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately RMB7.6 million.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no pledge of assets.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year under review.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital
so as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational
goal.

In 2015, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and
we required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest accounting standards, taxation
practices and budgetary control.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately 1,574
employees (31 December 2014: 2,073), consisting of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The total personnel expenses of the continuing operations,
comprising wages, salaries and benefits, and equity-settled share-
based payments, amounted to RMB69.7 million for 2015 (31
December 2014: RMB74.8 million).
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount
of our employees and outsourcing personnel of the continuing
operations as at 31 December 2015 and 2014:

TREWR -_ZE—RHF+_A=+—
B -_ZE—WFE+-A=+—8%M
FECEEBHNREERINBAER
R4

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

R-ZE-—1F RIE-—HWF

+=—A=+—-—H +ZA=+-—H

Full-time employees 2 EE 216 327
Contract personnel EHEE

— Sales persons —{EiH 8 930 1,206

— Others —EAb 428 540

Total employees wWES A 1,574 2,073

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong joined social insurance
contribution plans and mandatory provident fund scheme
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under
the share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies
play a crucial part in the further development of the Group.
Promising career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits
as well as pleasant working environment are essential factors for
maintenance of a stable workforce for the Group.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate
governance of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all
such necessary measures in order to promote good corporate
governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
principles and applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standards for
the directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirms
that the Directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises six members, including Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Chief Financial Officer and three
independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and Senior
Management on pages 52 to 56 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the
Group’s strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and
business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and
supervising the work of management. The management is
responsible for the daily operations of the Group under the
leadership of the CEO.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
These responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board
and directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and
management of the Company.
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The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors. Of which, one independent
non-executive director has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management
expertise and the independent non-executive directors represent
at least one-third of the Board. To satisfy the independence
requirement of the independent non-executive Directors, the
Board must determine that the independent non-executive
Director does not have any direct or indirect material relationship
with the Group. The Board follows the requirements set out in the
Listing Rules to determine the independence of Directors.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The board held 21 meetings in 2015. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan,
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung,
Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing has attended all 21
meetings. Ms. WAN Yuhua attended all 18 meetings which had
been held before her resignation on 9 December 2015.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) as required by the Corporate Governance Code and has
taken into account the diversity of the Board when selecting the
candidates from a number of perspectives as stated in the
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Diversity Policy and review the same as
appropriate.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration of each Director and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged
and reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, all current Directors
(being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin
Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing) received regular updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance matters,
and participated in the directors’ training offered by professional
body or arranged by the Company. Materials on new or changes
to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group were
provided to the Directors. Directors are requested to provide their
records of training they received to the Company Secretary for
record.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director,
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, and our two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. LI Bida and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. LI Bida is the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation to
the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating
to all Directors and senior management of our Group, review
performance based remuneration and ensures none of our
Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings in 2015. Each
of Mr. LI Bida, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung has attended all three
meetings. Ms. WAN Yuhua attended the only two meeting which
had been held before her resignation on 9 December 2015.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the
re-election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings in 2015. During
the meeting, the committee member review the senior
management structure of the Group. All committee members
attended these three meetings.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

On 1 January 2016, the Audit Committee has been renamed as
the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises three
Independent non-executive Directors and two of whom possesses
the appropriate business and financial experience and skills to
understand the accounts of the Group. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and
other members are Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee was formed in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management
and internal control systems of the Company.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee were
prepared and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee is required, amongst
other things, to oversee the relationship with the external auditors,
to review the Group’s interim and annual results, to review the
scope, extent and effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, to review accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent legal or
other advisers as it determines necessary and to perform
investigations.
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During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope
and findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of
the external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’s independence, objectivity
and the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and
interim results announcements of the Company;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the
Group

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the
annual report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the
Board. During the year, no issues were brought to the attention of
the senior management of the Company and the Board of
sufficient significance for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held two meetings in
2015. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG
Kin Wing has attended all two meetings.

ERFER BEhkEREEZESE
177 NAI%IAE

—  EESNEE R BRRD R R ﬁifﬁ%ﬂ
THIEH TIEM —REBMER

— RIIEZBEMMYREIZES
G T OAHLE

- MEHZEIERBMEER M@
EEgRER:

- WMAIEZBENBE LI FE
HEAMZ B F A WL

— FHARRFEREMFHRS
ANFEEMPYEENSE

— BMARAEZR AREZE ARE
EHEMMBREEE RER
EFEETUILEMETH W &

- BHAKHITUNBEERS -

ExLkRREEZERCEEEEN
SNEP R BENEHFE RS VE%%%

RN

SREEEC BN R BED M E A K
REeERZEeRIMEREEL
ClE-w2zkRAREEZE SN ITIEM
BRERAEZCER - AFER &
EEREEBNESFEIENHEZ
EEUTRAERFERSAIELA
AR

—hEHE ERMEREEZE

ﬁﬁﬂgﬁ REEEL FHE
%Eﬂ%@%%iﬂﬁﬁfﬁtﬁm
A—%o

Annual Report 2015 —Z — A F F

31



Corporate Governance Report

ERELHS

32

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit and Risk
Management Committee met once to review the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the
compliance of the Company with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015, is set out on pages 57 to
58 of the annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a sound
and effective system of internal control of the Group so as to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group
in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and
complying with the applicable laws and regulations. During the
year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions
on the adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and procedures. Through the Audit
and Risk Management Committee of the Group, the Board review
the effectiveness of these systems on a regular basis.
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Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
Shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of
corporate communication documents to Shareholders; (i) the
annual general meeting provides a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (i) latest and key
information of the Group are available on the website of the
Company; (iv) regular press conferences and briefing meetings
with investors, Shareholders and analysts are set up from time to
time on updated information of the Group, and; (v) the Company’s
registrars serve the Shareholders respecting all share registration
matters. The Board welcomes views of shareholders and
encourages them to attend general meetings to raise any
concerns they might have with the Board or the management
directly. The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen and/
or other members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
and Remuneration Committee will normally attend the annual
general meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the
Company to answer questions raised.

The Company convened one shareholders’ general meeting in
2015, the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2014.
The AGM held on 29 May 2015 reviewed and approved numerous
resolutions such as the financial statements for the year 2014,
Report of Directors and appointment and remuneration of auditors
of the Company. All the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Ms.
WAN Yuhua (before her resignation), Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr.
WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing have attended the AGM of the Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer. He assists the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that the policy and procedures of the Board
are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

REEBERRRREM

RAFEBRRREEEZL RN R
AR ()X R R RB A X 2 BN AR
TR (RRARRREF RS L&
REZNEEEIMER (AR FH
BEEHAEEZ &N REZEA (VA
REITREREAEERE  IREE
BREMD T EEHEAIRBERNEE K
ER > RWARRRZIRDEF R
NELFERARRRERRE -EFSH
MERRREEER  USBRELERR
ARELBEERAHESFSHAERREN
ERFRELRER E2GEFREX
rRBEEZEGeRFTHNZES TR
R/FEMKE —REHEARARE
BFEAGREMBRRAE  BERRH
2 e

ARABR-_FT—RAFAR-ABRRK
g RENEFERRBEFRS (R
RBFRE) - R_F-—AFHA-T
NEAFRNBRBFASERBBT
—E-NEHBRE EFHEERK
BEMEELMEe S HER - MEE
F HRBMRELE BEELL(RE
BER) BREBEE T=EREL
BIEFEL FREEERKRBRLEY
BHEARINBREFAE -

RNAME

NREWEEEREERT BEME S
fiRE @8 BAEENMBARAZH
TEERMBEE - BB EFTS IR
REFERNEEBUEBE URESE
MR RBFEEEST -

RET EMRAEIGRTE X4t
REBEE_T—RAF+-_A=t—HILF
EA2MA D R16/ K 8 HH B B R 15
Al e

Annual Report 2015 — & — {1 fF FE 3}

33



Corporate Governance Report
PRELES

34

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:
Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Shareholders may refer to the
Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year
ended 31 December 2015 in relation to audit services and non-
audit services (including the review of the Company’s interim
results announcement and interim report for the announcement
for the year 2015) are approximately RM847,000 and
RMB166,000 respectively.
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The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing,
manufacturing, trading and distribution of Chinese herbal
products, including shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-
care products, herbal tea products and household cleaning
products. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out on pages 170 to 171 of this annual report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the
Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
59 of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the

Company during the financial year 2015 are set out on pages 63
and 158 of this annual report respectively.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2015, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 31.2% and 13.7%, respectively of
the total sales of the Group. The Group purchased approximately
44.0% and 13.8%, respectively of its goods and services from its
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier.

Save as Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products Company Limited
(“Chenming Paper”), one of the Group’s suppliers, which is
wholly owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, the brother of Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan, the controlling shareholder and Director of the Company,
none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest customers
and five largest suppliers. The total purchase amount from
Chenming Paper by the Group accounted for approximately 6.4%
of the total purchase of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 172 of this
annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital And Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 27 to 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the
Shares held by the public as required under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of
this annual report.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
WAN Yuhua
(Resigned on 9 December 2015)
CHEN Zheng He
WONG Sin Yung cra
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, CPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E.)
LI Bida
CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on pages
52 to 56 of the annual report.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
and Dr. NGAlI Wai Fung will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He)
has entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHENG Zheng He
has entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years from 20 October 2014.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors (other than Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing) has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for term of three years from 13 November 2014.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any
service contract with the Company which cannot be terminated
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, experience,
responsibilities and performance of the Group. In addition to the
fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in
kind or bonuses, the Company has conditionally adopted a share
option scheme pursuant to which the participants, including the
Directors, may be granted options to subscribe for the Shares.

BIUFRTES
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2015, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they had taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and were entered into the
register that was required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”):
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Long Positions in shares, underlying shares and

R & 2T R H 48 Bk B aY Bz (7 Fn 48

debentures of the Company or any associated R hziER
corporation
Number of
shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage of
Long/Short position shares held issued share
Name of director in Ordinary Shares Nature of interest % 17 X #H B3 capital
E=E8 EBERPZEF KR ERME igvig = BFRBEDHL
CHEN Qiyuan Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 65.28%
corporation (Note 1)
PR BRIR HaE P 12 )% B 4 5
(Mt&E1)
WAN Yuhua Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 65.28%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE e P 2 1) 0% B 4 a5 (P E2)
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner (Note 3) 2,100,000 0.07%
HER e EmEA A (E3)
Notes: e -
1. CHEN Qiyuan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station 1. /B3 Fortune Station Limited ([ Fortune Station |)

Limited (“Fortune Station”) by virtue of Fortune Station being controlled by CHEN
Qiyuan and WAN Yuhua.

2. WAN Yuhua is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station by
virtue of Fortune Station being controlled by WAN Yuhua and CHEN Qiyuan.

3. Including 630,000 shares, which would be allotted and issued to WONG Sin Yung
upon the exercise in full of the share options granted to WONG Sin Yung under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company. For details, please refer to
section headed “Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”
below.

AMEUR B E RIS - ERUR R AR
7 Fortune Station Ffi 7 #) 1% {3 #0 1  «

/R # Fortune Station & & & % & [R BUR BT &
#ll - & X = # 18 A& % & Fortune Station fT £
RGBS -

£ 35630,000 8 W L8 R BEITHEER - IR
BAARBRAHABEESAIERENE &
ERTEBRERZ ZSEBROHBEREER
BOINEER BHEFE #28TXE
B R R A AR SR EREE ] —
£ o
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Long Position in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Associated
Corporations

TR AE B8 B HY AR €0 M AE B R

AN

2w

Approximate
percentage of

interest in

associated

Name of associated corporation

Name of director corporation Nature of interest Number of shares R iHEE LB+

EEEB BB LEARE ERME B3 2B ZEZHDL

CHEN Qiyuan Fortune Station Beneficial owner 5,100 51.00%
fR BUTR Fortune Station EEEE A

WAN Yuhua Fortune Station Beneficial owner 4,900 49.00%
B Fortune Station EnlEAA

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so far
as known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they had taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and were entered into in
the register that was required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

BRERBEOABZIIN RZF—AF
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51 55 XV EE 80 0% =) & B fn - A8 B A 1 3k
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XVERE7 M ED AR E A E RN AR
AN EE AR (BREEFE
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register that was required to be kept pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

RNRNBREBZRRAVEDR R
29

BEXARRIERNEESERITERABR
M RZE—RAF+_A=+—H0 K
R(BEARARESZTIZTERABIN)
RBEDEBEBRDTPEEREES R
HEKPIFEICEATEECLRETTE
MELMARNERIOXE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held capital
REREZ®B EmEMtE igvig = BERBESL
Fortune Station Beneficial owner (Note 3) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%
Fortune Station ExnEA A (EES)
CHEN Qiyuan Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%
PR BRCIR PRiEdEE s (M)
WAN Yuhua Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%
BERE PREZE A B = (M5 2)
Claren Enterprises Limited Security interest (Note 3) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%
(“Claren”) R = (I FES)
VMS Finance Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%
(“VMS Finance”) Fir 22 i) K B #E 2= (B 5k 4)
VMS Holdings Limited Interest in controlled oqrporation (Note 4) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%
(“VMS Holdings”) PR 4% 1) 0% B 25 (P 52 4)
MAK Siu Hang Viola Interest in controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.28%

o

P2 05 B e 2 (M 3E4)

() — Long Position L—FE
Notes: Mot -
1. CHEN Qiyuan is the beneficial owner of 51.0% of the issued share capital of 1. BREUR A Fortune Station 2 2 17 IR A #951.0%

Fortune Station and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune
Station. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to be interested in
WAN Yuhua'’s interests in Fortune Station.

2. WAN Yuhua is the beneficial owner of 49.0% of the issued share capital of 2.
Fortune Station and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune
Station. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to be interested in
CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station.

3. On 29 September 2015, Fortune Station has pledged 1,900,840,000 Shares in 3.
favour of Claren as security for a loan facility provided by Claren.

Em A A 115 &R Fortune Station #
ERRNTHEEREE BEENEMBBRE
TR A8 B 7 8 E % 7£ Fortune Station 79 ## 25
R RER -

& T % /& Fortune Station E % 17 1% 28 #949.0%
Emi#EA A IR AR Fortune Station
ENRNTHEE R RRENEBRE X
= 4% 15 & A FR BUR 7 Fortune Station #) 1 &5
R RER -

R—_ZT—RHFHhh A=+ 1 B Fortune
Station #% & # & #91,900,840,000 % A% 17
# F Claren{E AClaren @ H 1% H E @t & &)
IR o
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4. Claren is wholly owned by VMS Finance, VMS Finance is wholly owned by VMS
Holdings and VMS Holdings is wholly owned by MAK Siu Hang Viola. As such,
VMS Finance, VMS Holdings and MAK Siu Hang Viola are deemed to be
interested in Claren’s interests in the Company, respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10
December 2008 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the
purpose of which is to give the Directors, senior management and
employees of the Group an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate its employees to optimise their
performance and efficiency, and also to retain employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the date becoming effective.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0%
(or such other percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of Shares issuable to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval at a general meeting.

4, Claren B VMS Finance® & # & * MVMS
Finance i VMS Holdings & & # & © BVMS
HoldingsB X 2 I 2 B # B - E Itk - VMS
Finance, VMS Holdings Fl 25 2> 188 9 Bl 4 1% &
“ClarenE BN AR R ER T HEARER -
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Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates)
of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance at a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon
payment of an option price to be determined by the Board from
time to time. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Board, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall be at least the highest of () the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the offer date, which must be a business day; (i) the average
of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (jii) the nominal value of
a Share.

As of 31 December 2015, an aggregate of 2,880,000 shares
options were granted to three employees by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme, but all of them have been forfeited.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 10
December 2008. As of 31 December 2015, options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were granted,
representing approximately 0.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the latest practicable date. No further options
will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42
participants by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0 each.
The subscription price of the pre-IPO share options would be at
par value or at HK$1.19.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B iR (5 &) #2
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A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to two
executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to
subscribe for a total of 840,000 shares held by a director resigned
on 28 May 2013 were forfeited on the same date, which was
partially exercised up to 31 December 2015. Movement of these
share options during the year ended 31 December 2015 are as
follows:

RZZEZAFNANB REIEFWA
HMITE E A 4,200,000 8 & X A
BEABERE-HF —REFR=-Z
—ZFFBEA-_t+ \BEIHEFEESL
840,000 D B EE KR B K7
BHE-_Z—hE+-_A=+—0 %8B
fEEE o WITFE EREE A AABE
MEREREE_-_ZT—HRFE+-_A=+
—BIEFEBHMAOT

Number of share options
ROBEHE
Outstanding [o] Approxii
as at as at percentage of
1 January 31 December issued share
2015 Granted Exercise 2015 capital of the
8z during during Forfeited HEZ Company (%)
Exercise price =~ —Z—HF the year the year during —E-EF ERAT
Name of director Date of grant (HKD) —A—-H RER RER theyear +T-—A=+—-H ERTRAEAMNH Exercised Period
EEEH RER TREGERT) HAITE  RFHE THESE RERXX 1 RAT B HEA(%) TEBH
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 630,000 - — - 630,000 0.01 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
HER ZTTAFAANEEE —T-MELANBEE
—E-AFRANA
Total 630,000 - - - 630,000 0.01

as

Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of
10,332,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were granted to 40 employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. Of
which, options to subscribe for totalling 5,227,320 Shares granted
to 28 employees had been forfeited.

As at 31 December 2015, there was a balance of unexpired and
unexercised options to subscribe for 1,653,960 Shares. Except
for the options which had been granted as disclosed above, no
further options were granted as at 31 December 2015. Details of
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 28 under the
section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements”
in this annual report.

BRUEEASN - EZFZERFSANA R
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Continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang Guangzhou”)
and Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd (“Guangzhou
Bawang”) entered into a lease agreement (the “Production
Plant Lease Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for the lease
of production plant at Bawang Industrial Complex which is
located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC. The term of
the Production Plant Lease Agreement is three years
commenced from 9 August 2013, renewable at the option
of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s notice prior to
the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent and property
management fee in aggregate is RMB1,120,000 and is fixed
throughout the term of the lease. Bawang Guangzhou has
been granted a right of first refusal to purchase the
production premises under the Production Plant Lease
Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, pursuant to the
Production Plant Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang
Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately
RMB13.44 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the Director. Guangzhou Bawang is
company beneficially owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms.
WAN Yuhua (Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s wife). The transactions
contemplated under the Production Plant Lease Agreement
therefore constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company.
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Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a
lease agreement (the “Office Premises Lease
Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for the lease of office,
which is located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC.
The term of the Office Premises Lease Agreement is three
years commenced from 9 August 2013, renewable at the
option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s notice
prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent and
property management fee in aggregate is RMB92,800 and
is fixed throughout the term of the lease. Bawang
Guangzhou has been granted a first right of refusal to
purchase the office premises under the Office Premises
Lease Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to
terminate the Office Premises Lease Agreement by giving
three months’ prior notice to Guangzhou Bawang.

For the year end 31 December 2015, pursuant to the Office
Premises Lease Agreement, the annual rent paid by Bawang
Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately
RMB1.11 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the Director. Guangzhou Bawang is
company beneficially owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms.
WAN Yuhua (Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s wife). The transactions
contemplated under the Office Premises Lease Agreement
therefore constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company.

FITEMNEEMNEIRN-_ZFZ—=
FNANLBET—HOHABAA
Emz((MAGSHREEHE] &
“E-=ZFNANLABERLRN
FEEMNTAZEAOH G-
BERANGAHEE S &8
A-ZF THBIEMNEER
WMATBEL —@ABMTANELD -
HEeMYEETEESTAEXARE
92,8007C - RHAEEA - AMHEE T
BoREBERASMEERE B
BMNITEREERABFNEL
-BETEMEBEEREMN=-@AB®
MENBIRENASHMEERH

2
FES

He2_Z—hAF+-_A=+—H
WFE  REBERQGHAAE R
BITEMNIXNENSBIFERS
HAREIITEE T -

REREERES MEMBZL
EELTABRRBRREENE EE
T (BRRBUREEZERMB) KR H
B-MRAGHMEEMHE TETT
MZXZERARANFTEHEER
5 o

Annual Report 2015 — & — {1 fF FE 3}

47



Report of the Directors

EEERE

48

Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper entered into a
packaging material supply agreement on 28 March 2009,
pursuant to which Chenming Paper agreed to supply
packaging material to Bawang Guangzhou from time to time
at fixed unit prices for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2009 and has been renewed subsequently (the
“Packaging Material Supply Agreement”’). Bawang
Guangzhou and Chenming Paper will review the prices
offered by Chenming Paper at least once annually to ensure
that they are at market prices or at prices no less favourable
than those offered to Bawang Guangzhou by independent
third-parties. The Packaging material Supply Agreement was
renewed by Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper on
12 December 2014 for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2015 and on the same terms
as the original Packaging Material Supply Agreement. The
Packaging Material Supply Agreement will be automatically
renewed by a term of three years in the absence of a three-
month prior written notice.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, pursuant to the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of packaging material by
Chenming Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was approximately
RMB4.7 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole and the transaction amount of such
continuing connected transactions does not exceed their
respective annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Directors’ interests in contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions” in this annual report, no Director or an entity
connected with a Director has or had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party which was subsisting during or at the end of the financial
year.
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Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest
in competing business

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the
controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company had any interest in a business, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Corporate governance

For the year ended 31 December 2015, all the code provisions
set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules were met by the Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Company has established the Audit and Risk Management
Committee in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has also complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules and appointed three independent non-executive
Directors including two with financial management expertise. The
primary duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee are,
among other things, to review the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee also provides advice and suggestions to
the Board. The Audit and Risk Management Committee has
reviewed the audited annual financial statements of the Group
contained in this annual report with the management of the
Company and the Company’s independent auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.
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Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Directors

The Board consists of six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
following table sets forth certain information in respect of our
Directors:

==

EFedh R REFAN BRE=Z2H1T
EEN=RBIUIFRITES - TR
AREFHNETER:

Name Age Position/Title

m& FEe B BE

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 54 Chairman and Executive Director
BR BOIR 5% £ ITEERNTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 27 CEQ and Executive Director

PR IE#5 % & BEFERITERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 61 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
mEERELE BEFEMBERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 54 Independent non-executive Director
HEEEL BYIFNITES

Mr. LI Bida 75 Independent non-executive Director
FUERE BYFRITES

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 62 Independent non-executive Director
RIEFERSEAE BUIFATES

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 54, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN s responsible for the overall strategic planning
and management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive
experience in the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having
been engaged in the consumer chemical product business for
over 20 years. Mr. CHEN and Ms. WAN entered the HPC product
business by establishing Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.
(the predecessor entity of the Company) in 1994, to enter the
HPC product business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the
trading of pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010,
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative
Successor of Chinese Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong
Provincial Bureau of Culture. In December 2013, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan had been honoured as the “Distinguished People of Yunfu
City” for recognition of his contribution to the development of the
city.
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RITES

BREUR £ - 5458 RASE KRR
A BANERFE YB-FTTLF+—
AT-AHERMNRTES -REL
BEAEERBRRRINERE KL
EREFRICERTETENXHBEB
0F EREERBEAZEEEMIT
XEALERR EREITEMENR
AEAAEEERER REERSRL
%-hh@i&ﬁ?Mﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ

RA(ARBIMAT S ER) NEER

AEASEER RS 6T RNBE
HRERARZA - Rt E SRR E
EEESER —F-FE+—A K

RRBEERERBE RRKRERRBENRE
RAEFMEXLEEE B RKRMEFE &
Al ZF—=ZF+_"F BREBOREL
AESWTELNER  WETIEZE
BT I RBM -

ZRAR AR



Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEAR

Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 27, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in
March 2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of
Bawang Guangzhou since then and started to involve in the
planning of sales, marketing, advertising and promotion
campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN was appointed as
the personal assistant to the chief executive officer of the
Company since March 2012, mainly responsible for the daily
administration and management of Bawang Guangzhou. Since
mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible for the
supervision and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and
promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works
closely with the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company on formulating overall strategic plan and management
of the Group, and executing strategic plans in marketing, and
sales and distribution. Mr. CHEN has been appointed as the CEO
and Remuneration Committee Member with effect from 9
December 2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the degree of bachelor of
commerce from the University of Toronto in 2012. Mr. CHEN is
the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman and an executive
Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 61, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008.
He is responsible for the finance management and control,
accounting, auditing, company secretarial and investor relations
of our Group. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. WONG was an
executive director of China Ting Group Holdings Limited (03398),
from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief accountant and finance
manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial Consultants)
Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003 respectively.
He also worked for a certified public accountant firm from 1992 to
1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in corporate
finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration, and
project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business
administration from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, aged 54, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2008. He is currently the
Managing Director of MNCOR Consulting Limited and the Chief
Executive Officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, a
specialty company secretarial, corporate governance and
compliance services provider to companies in pre-IPO and post-
IPO stages. Prior to that, he was the director and head of listing
services of an independent integrated corporate services provider.
He has over 20 years of senior management experience including
acting as the executive director, chief financial officer and
company secretary, most of which are in the areas of finance,
accounting, internal control and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and secretarial work for listed issuers including major
red chips companies. He had led or participated in a number of
significant corporate finance projects including listings, mergers
and acquisitions as well as issuance of debt securities. Dr. NGAI
was appointed by the Chief Executive of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region as a member of the Working Group on
Professional Services under the Economic Development
Commission for two years in 2013 and reappointed for further two
years in 2015. He is the immediate past president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a
member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, the
Adjunct Professor of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, a
member of the Qualification and Examination Board of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the General Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies. He obtained a doctoral degree in Finance from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2011, a
master’s degree in corporate finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2002 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Andrews University of Michigan in 1992. Dr.
NGAI was an independent non-executive director of China Life
Insurance Company Limited (02628) from 2006 to 2009,
Franshion Properties (China) Limited (00817) from 2007 to 2011,
China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (01186) from
2007 to 2014 and Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Ltd (00631) from 2009 to 2015, and is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Railway Group
Limited (0390), China Coal Energy Company Limited (01898),
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SITC International Holdings Company Limited (01308), Bosideng
International Holdings Limited (03998), Powerlong Real Estate
Holdings Limited (01238), Beijing Capital Juda Limited (formerly
known as Juda International Holdings Limited) (01329), Biostime
International Holdings Limited (01112), Yangtze Optical Fibre and
Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (06869), BBMG Corporation
(02009), TravelSky Technology Limited (00696) and Topsearch
International (Holding) Limited (02323), shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr.
Ngai is also an independent director of LDK Solar Co. Ltd (LDKYQ),
which was previously listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
and currently listed on the OTC Pink Limited Information.

Mr. LI Bida, aged 75, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. LI was the head of Department of Lawyers, the
Ministry of Justice of the PRC, currently known as Department of
Directing Lawyers and Notarization, Ministry of Justice, from 1988
to 1992. He was also an arbitrator in China International
Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission from 1989 to 1990.
From 1992 to 1995, he served as standing deputy head of State
Trademark Bureau. From 1992 to 2001, he held various positions
in State Administration of Industry and Commerce including the
head of the Fair Trading Bureau and the head of Registration
Bureau. He was a consultant with a number of companies,
including Galanz Group from 2001 to 2003, Perfect (China) Co.,
Ltd. and Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2005,
Ricoh China Co., Ltd. from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China)
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2007. He is currently a consultant of
Intellectual Property Institute of Peking University, professor of
Renmin University of China Law School and Capital University of
Economics and Business. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s degree in
law from Hubei University in 1965.
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Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, aged 62, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has around 30 years of experience in information
technology, financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr.
CHEUNG is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has
been a director and lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants
Limited, a company providing human resources management and
information technology consultancy services to its clients (including
government organisations and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG
had been an independent director of Principal Trust Company (Hong
Kong) Limited (formerly known as AXA China Region Trustees
Limited) from August 1999 to August 2015. Mr. CHEUNG has
also been an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited since November 2003. Mr.
CHEUNG had held several positions, including Assistant Manager,
Manager and Senior Manager between September 1980 and July
1991 in Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG had been a partner of
Coopers & Lybrand since March 1995, and had been a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers & Lybrand was merged
with Price Waterhouse into PricewaterhouseCoopers in October
1998 until his resignation in May 1999. Mr. CHEUNG was a
director of the finance and operation department of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants between July 2004 and
April 2008 and a consultant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants between April 2008 and August 2008. Mr.
CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from The University
of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.
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Independent Auditor's Report
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fekspda

Shine‘zomg

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 59 to 171, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
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Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
21 March 2016

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B iR (5 &) #2

WHRBIRNITEZTE LWEEETEL
EHREVBRERSTIFEAMERK
$HER PR A ©

BEZTESRUTREFNERSE B
AU BBRERMBBBERFEEERZE
ZRE - TBEZRRFEURARZEE 2
HE PREFEGRAVERERREREE
HEMAFERMERERERRL 2
L - EF AL SRR ZEMEE
HZARREBEEmMA T ®K LR
AMIEHRERMBE 2 REBIEH - ARG E
BCEXERF BYEAHARZAL
THZERMERER - BERTIENE

EHEEEMRAZEHEREZAHE
MREE 2 @5t st 2 & B UK
TEBRAEVBRRZEEINFAIN -

BPEE RPAMESZERERECD
rREBEMRBMzEZERRHTE

;’éo

2R
BHRBR ZEHAMBRECREE
R REEREE M AR

EEER-_FT-—RF+-_A=+—H
ZHBRREEBEZALEFEZE
BLRESRE  YERREB QARG
HRmE -

EXPN(EB)EMELEMERAT
HEDEAD

R Kk £t

HMEBERS  P03224

BB
—E-R"HF=-ZA=-+—H

ERAER R



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

e — \ /
BA B ER
12 A S g - N
For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-—AF+-_A=1+-—HLFE

2015 2014
—E-A%F —ZE—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T R AR T T
Continuing operations BERKEEK
Revenue o 7 232,181 294,649
Cost of sales 8 & AR (143,893) (184,417)
Gross profit EF 88,288 110,232
Other income HEaA 8 1,835 2,778
Changes in fair value less costs to £ ¥ & E A A BB 8
sell in respect of biological assets & AW & B8 20 (122 (1,782)
Selling and distribution costs HENRSERX (89,629) (144,544)
Administrative expenses THEHR (52,831) (37,810)
Other expenses Hih &M (54,364) (42,585)
Share of loss of a joint venture JBiREENFEIE 18 (696) —
Waiver of capital injection in e /NI D=y
a joint venture 18 696 —
Finance costs Bl & KA 9 (3,755) (1,830)
Loss before taxation M AIEE (110,578) (115,541)
Taxation HE 10 — _
Loss for the year from continuing ARAREBAEGLE
operations attributable to REREEBIFN
owners of the Company &5 18 11 (110,578) (115,541)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued Z<A Bl A AEIH B E
operation attributable to RIEREREE
owners of the Company FAEE 13 () 916)
Loss for the year attributable to KABHAE AEL
owners of the Company FREE (110,581) (116,457)
Loss per share FREE 15
From continuing and discontinued — B {B R & # R O
operations BUFAE &R T
Basic and diluted BERKREE
(RMB cents) (AR (3.80) (4.00)
From continuing operations KEFHEEEER
Basic and diluted EARK#E
(RMB cents) (AR (3.80) (3.97)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AFt+-A=+—HLEE

15X
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2015 2014
— — MM
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%®Tr
Loss for the year FREIE (110,581) (116,457)
Other comprehensive expense Htt2EXH
Item that may be reclassified AIRAEBEN D BEZER
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising on BINEBBRECERER
translation of foreign operations (2,711) (106)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AAREBEAEEFALE
attributable to owners of the Company > H4a%E (113,292) (116,563)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

=Y DY

2015 2014
—E-REF —ZE—MOF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AR®Tx AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BENLKE 19 154,999 225,340
Biological assets EYEE 20 162 175
155,161 225,515
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 40,909 52,039
Biological assets EYEE 20 426 426
Trade and other receivables 25 & H 4 e WA 22 64,869 68,168
Deposit with bank |ITHE R 23 20,000 20,000
Bank balances and cash RITEFERBE S 23 9,604 16,934
135,808 157,567
Current liabilities RENAE
Trade and other payables 5 K H i EA R IE 24 171,888 166,034
Amounts due to related parties JE 1< B8 3 5 5B 33(a) 7,301 6,208
Income tax payables FE A FT 15 F1 9,645 9,645
Provisions SHIRER 25 3,826 2,044
192,660 183,931
Net current liabilities REBEEREE (56,852) (26,364)
Total assets less current liabilites EEZBERABARG 98,309 199,151
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loans from controlling shareholders PR RS AR ERfE X 33(h) 54,946 44,069
Deferred tax liability EIEFIEAGE 26 2,031 2,031
56,977 46,100
Net assets EEFE 41,332 153,051
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEMBERAE

As at 31 December 2015
RZE-—RAF+_A=+—H

62

2015 2014

—E-RF —ZE—MOF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Mz AR®Tn ARBTE

Capital and reserves BAXE#E

Share capital A% 7 27(a) 256,705 256,639
Reserves 1 27(b) (215,373) (103,588)
Total equity S 41,332 153,051
The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 171 were FEOEBEEFINMAZEAVBEHREER

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director
EF
CHEN Qiyuan
BR RSIR

TE-RF=-A-t-HEEFS#

R T
£
Director
Ea

CHEN Zheng He

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
S Y&
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-—AF+-_A=1+-—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ENGE: $:552-DN; '
PRC
Share Share  statutory Capital Merger Translation Other Accumulated
capital  premium  reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HEEE
BRE  RAEE ®E EREE A0EE EXRE H4RE R FRE BER4E
RVMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTFE ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE—-A—A 256,639 1,354,742 49,887 6,543 8,468 (26,368) - (1,386,739) 263,172
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - (116,457)  (116,457)
Other comprehensive expense HEt2HER
for the year
Exchange differences arising on BNERBEZER
translation of foreign operations g - - - — - (106) - - (106)
Total comprehensive expense FREHIMEE
for the year - - - — - (106) - (116,457)  (116,563)
Deemed contribution arising from ERBFREN S BB
non-interest bearing loans from EEZBRREE
controlling shareholders (note 33(h))  (Fff3%33(h)) - - - - - - 6,245 - 6,245
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR E W AR
share-based payments BEBHAT - - - 197 - - - - 197
Forfeiture of vested equity-settled BEGEBHARELET
share-based payments MR BERANR - - - (1,774) - - - 1,774 -
At 31 December 2014 A\ZE-E
+-A=+-H8 256,639 1,354,742 49,887 4,966 8,468 (26,474) 6,245 (1,501,422 153,051
At 1 January 2015 RZE-EE-A—A 256,630 1,354,742 49,887 4,966 8468 (26474 6245 (1501429 153,051
Loss for the year FRER
Other comprehensive expense Et2EEA
for the year - - - - - - - (110,581)  (110,581)
Exchange differences arising on BIEBRECERER
translation of foreign operations - - - - - (2,711) - - 2,711)
Total comprehensive expense FREEIMEE
for the year - - - - - M) —  (110581) (113,292)
Deemed contribution arising TRBRRENDEHER
from non-interest bearing loans MELZRREE
from controlling shareholders (GEXED)]
(note 33(1) - - - - - - 1,507 - 1,507
Issue of shares under share BREHETE
option scheme (note 28) (H#E28) 66 1,627 - (1,627) - - - - 66
Forfeiture of vested equity-settied BB BN AREEEY
share-based payments URGAEROFR - - - (525) - - - 525 -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—-1F
+-A=+-H 256,705 1,356,369 49,887 2,814 8,468 (29,185) 7,752 (1,611,478) 41,332
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HILFE
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2015 2014
—E-aF% _—T-OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRETE
Loss before taxation from continuing AR A R 3Kk > B AT S48
operations (110,578) (115,541)
Loss before taxation from discontinued ERIFEEEK 2B EE
operation 3 (916)
(110,581) (116,457)
Adjustments for: B TIE T R
Bank interest income RITH B 1451 (620) (540)
Changes in fair value less costs to EYE F ~ e BERBHEE
sell in respect of biological assets ARH) BB 18 122 1,782
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - BE LR EITE 17,277 26,998
Finance costs =N 3,755 1,830
Impairment loss recognised in respect of WM HMERERERE
property, plant and equipment 1B K HER e 54,364 42,544
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Z 5 EWHIE ZRE
trade receivables BRER 4,809 72
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, BEWE  BWEIE&E
plant and equipment (Mrzs) Bk (51) 127
Provision for litigation SREAETIEE A 3,487 662
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEBKERE (1,637) (893)
Write-down of inventories 5 (B 796 1,256
Write-off of inventories FEWmeE 6,106 9,908
Share of loss of a joint venture (& & REE 696 —
Waiver of capital injection in a joint venture HReEGELNIEE (696) —
Reversal of provision for litigation FAAFTIREBEAEE - (120)
Equity-settled share-based payment VARE #E A5 E W0 AR 1D B
expenses ERNSINE ﬁﬁ — 197
Write-off of trade and other receivables B 5 K th FE UK SR IE BEE — 128
Operating cash flows before working EEEeEHAI KLEES
capital changes ME (22,173) (32,506)
Decrease (increase) in inventories &R (3 m) 6,010 (6,930)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 K H th & W sk I8 (38 hn)
receivables Vo (1,602) 26,858
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 K £ fb & 15 3 I8 42 N
G 6,769 (40,539)
Increase in amounts due to related parties FE1~F R85 75 sX I8 18 0 1,093 4,694
Decrease in provisions AHRE AR (1,705) (324)
Decrease in restricted bank balance PR HI R 1717 FOR - 309
Decrease in prepaid advertising fee ENESEERR D - 123
Cash used in operations KEEFFTAMNIIRS (11,608) (48,315)
Income taxes paid BEfAER - -
NET CASH USED IN RETHMANRESFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (11,608) (48,315)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B % (£ &)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EBaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARE&ET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETD
Bank interest received B U IR 1T F B 712 139
Plantation expenditure of biological EYEEEE EZ 5
assets — non-current portion — JEmE D (254) (366)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand  EE Y ¥ - HE & & #
equipment Fr 1% 518 75 480
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE WMENLKE (2,111) (6,787)
Placement of deposit with bank RITFRZTFA - (20,000)
NET CASH USED IN RETEBMANRSFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,578) (26,534)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬂ‘\ ﬁ EE
Proceed from issue of new shares BT R B HIE 66 -
Proceeds from loans from controlling RS IR E TS BB
shareholders 32,128 48,484
Repayments of loans from controlling BEERREES
shareholders (26,506) —
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES R ETEE4NE ST 5,688 48,484
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBRSEEYRLFE
EQUIVALENTS (7,498) (26,369)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZzREREAESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 16,934 43,302
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERSEHLE
RATE CHANGES 168 3)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND REXHLRBELSZEY
OF THE YEAR, representing bank balances ~ B8R 17 &7 KR &
and cash 9,604 16,934
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HILFE

66

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B % (£ &)

General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate parent company is
Fortune Station Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is beneficially owned by Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, the Chairman of the board of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, and Ms. WAN Yuhua, a
former director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
(collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at 6th
Floor, 181 Tangle Road, Tangyong Village, Xinshi, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510410, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is same as the functional currency
of the Company.

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB110,581,000 and reported a net cash outflow from
operating activities of approximately RMB11,608,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2015, and had accumulative
losses of approximately RMB1,611,478,000 and net current
liabilities of approximately RMB56,852,000 as at 31
December 2015. In view of such circumstances, the
Directors of the Company have given consideration to the
future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group
will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the Group is
able to continue as a going concern in the coming year
taking into consideration of the following:

()  The Group’s Controlling Shareholders and Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Bawang”), an entity wholly-owned by the Controlling
Shareholders, shall continue to provide loan facility to
the Group until 31 December 2017 under the existing
available facility amounted to approximately
RMB85,058,000 as at 31 December 2015. On 17
March 2016, amount of HK$35,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB29,323,000) has been drawn down
by the Group. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable by 31 December 2017 or earlier as
determined by the Group; and

(i) ~ The Group shall implement cost-saving measures to
maintain adequate cash flows for the Group’s
operations.

In light of the above, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is still appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be not able to continue to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would be necessary to
reclassify all non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities, write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities
which may arise. The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated any of these adjustments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RaEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE-_ZTZ-—AFt+-A=+—BHLEE

68

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs, which include IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations (“Int(s)”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB.

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plan: Employee
Contributions

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 2 () change the definitions of
“vesting condition” and “market condition”; and (i) add
definitions for “performance condition” and “service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of “vesting condition”. The amendments to IFRS 2
are effective for share-based payment transactions for which
the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39 or
a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other
than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to IFRS 3
are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to IFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have “similar economic characteristics”;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the
reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should
only be provided if the segment assets are regularly provided
to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of IFRS 13
clarify that the issue of IFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 9 did not remove the ability
to measure short-term receivables and payables with no
stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The
amended standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to IAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently,
the reporting entity should disclose as related party
transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or
payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors of the Company consider that the application
of the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle has had no material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for
in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within IAS 32.
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to IAS 40 clarify that IAS 40 and IFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring
investment property must determine whether:

(@) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of IAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under IFRS 3.

The Directors of the Company consider that the application
of the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle has had no material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 622)

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation during the financial year. As a
result, there are changes to presentation and disclosures of
certain information in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.
IFRS 9

IFRS 15
IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Leases*

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle'

Disclosure Initiative'
Statement of Cash Flows?

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?

Clarification of Acceptance
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying

the Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations’
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective date not yet been determined.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
IFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, IFRS 9 was further amended to
bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting
that will allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in the consolidated financial statements. A finalised
version of IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all the
requirements of IFRS 9 that were issued in previous years
with limited amendments to the classification and
measurement by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain financial assets. The finalised version of IFRS 9
also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Application of New and Revised 2. A REETBEIR
International Financial Reporting B 7% 3R 5 25 B ([ B PR B
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong B EER D M EB
Companies Ordinance (continued) NEIRESVIE)

EFRMARERZHMITRIERE
ATERMSGREER(E)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities °

designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting for
an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were added.
Those requirements eliminate the threshold that was in
IAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in IFRS 9 it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses
should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely information
is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS 9 introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a
principle-based approach, IFRS 9 looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity
to use information produced internally for risk
management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under IAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in IAS
39 using metrics that are designed solely for
accounting purposes. The new model also includes
eligibility criteria but these are based on an economic
assessment of the strength of the hedging relationship.
This can be determined using risk management data.
This should reduce the costs of implementation
compared with those for IAS 39 hedge accounting
because it reduces the amount of analysis that is
required to be undertaken only for accounting
purposes.

IFRS 9 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of IFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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Application of New and Revised
IrmamationaIFinancialReporting1
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 specifies how to recognise, measure, present and
disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or
less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors
continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS
16’s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged
from its predecessor, IAS 17.

IFRS 16 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of IFRS 16 in the future may
have a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 16 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, IFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(

) |dentify the contract with the customer;

(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)
(i)  Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(v} Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

IFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the consolidated financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

IFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of IFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
IFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 5 clarify that changing from one of
the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or disposal
through distribution to owners) to the other should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5.
Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to IFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in
a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee
and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in IFRS 7 in order to assess whether the
additional disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety are
required. Besides, the amendments to IFRS 7 also clarify
that disclosures in relation to offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report, unless the disclosures provide a significant
update to the information reported in the most recent annual
report.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify that the market depth of
high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is
no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used.

IAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements “if not disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report”. The amendments to IAS 34
clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in
the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and
wherever they are included within the greater interim
financial report. The other information within the interim
financial report must be available to users on the same
terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation methods for property, plant and
equipment under IAS 16. The amendments to IAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-
based amortisation methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted only in the
following limited circumstances:

()  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue;

(i)  when a high correlation between revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the Directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 define bearer plants.
Biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants are
no longer accounted for under IAS 41, but under IAS 16
instead. The produce growing on bearer plants continues to
be accounted for in accordance with IAS 41.

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied retrospectively.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of these amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 in the future
may have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the consolidated financial statements. Specifically, an entity
should decide, taking into consideration all relevant facts
and circumstances, how it aggregates information in the
consolidated financial statements, which include the notes.
An entity does not require to provide a specific disclosure
required by an IFRS if the information resulting from that
disclosure is not material. This is the case even if the IFRS
contain a list of specific requirements or describe them as
minimum requirements.
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Application of New and Revised
International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS(s)”) and New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (continued)

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method, separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

() an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

(i)  significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included
with related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to IAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2A. Change of Accounting Estimates

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B % (£ &)

Change of depreciation rate in the year

In previous years, machinery was depreciated at 10% per
annum. With effect from 1 January 2015, machinery has
been depreciated at 6.7% per annum. The decrease in
depreciation rate used is due to the low utilisation rate of
machinery with shrinking revenue. This change in
depreciation rate has decreased the depreciation charge for
the year by approximately RMB3,293,000.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for biological assets that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled

by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns. When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, power over the investee may be
obtained through: () a contractual arrangement with other
vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (i) the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on all

relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group

loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases

to control the subsidiary.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group’s investment a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, investment in a joint
venture is initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of
the profit or loss and changes in the other comprehensive
income of the joint venture are recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income respectively after the date
of acquisition. If the Group’s share of loss of a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, which
determined using the equity method together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

& Iﬁﬁﬂﬂ&ﬁﬁt

FeRBZBE(E)

BREhkEME2EREZZSEER
BRARBIHEAE ARIFETRE
mo RN EEBHYIEERESTESE
%%i% B ARz 2mKas

RESBRBRARNBIEA AN
TiHEHX*EﬁﬁO

SEANFSEERBCEACEEREA
B -FBEE#ER WA FAXUAK
Eﬁi/}mi’ ﬂ%ﬁ/\‘\ HJAEEE H‘il/;&%%(
Y3 o

SELFHRE

BERAAR-—HEAELH KA

%Hﬁf‘%zﬂﬁtzxﬁﬂ/\“ﬁﬁt
hZREEZTHEM- HREZEG
L= VA= %H%%$%E§
BE 2 12 I FhAE B UE BT
%ﬁELXAH%Mﬁ—ﬁﬁ%
ZERTHFE-

EEREERRZEE TR
BEHEHAREYBRERA -
BIEEZREZ RAERAIZEE
&W$w*\ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
RHBELABRUBERAEE
DHEERARZEEREMER
W - EAXAEBLHAEERRAZ
BEEBHERZEE AR ZER
(BEANELD LERAEERZ
AERBZREFBZREER)
B AREERIEERED EZL
—TEEB - REAKEEERSA
NREEEZEREETE T Ii
NZBEZIBER TN IEERREING
BY®EREE-

ZRAR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the joint venture’s losses (if any), the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its investment in the joint
venture. The entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment in the joint venture. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment in a joint venture (continued)

When the investment ceases to be a joint venture upon the
Group losing joint control over the joint venture, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained
interest is measured at fair value at that date which is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKAS 39. Any difference between
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the joint venture and the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity
method was discontinued is recognised in profit or loss. Any
amount previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that investment is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained earnings on the same basis as it would
have been required if the investee had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that
lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave
in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interest are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into
agricultural produce for sale or into additional biological
assets. Biological assets are measured at fair value less
costs to sell at initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period while agricultural produce are measured at
fair value less costs to sell at the point of harvest, which is
deemed as the cost at that date when the agricultural
produce becomes inventory or additional biological assets.

If an active market exists for a biological asset or agricultural
produce with reference to comparable species, growing
condition and expected yield of the crops, the quoted price
in that market is adopted for determining the fair value of
that asset. If an active market does not exist, the Group
uses the most recent market transaction price, provided that
there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances between the transaction date and the end of
reporting period, or the market prices for similar assets
adjusted to reflect differences to determine fair values or as
determined by independent professional valuers. The gain or
loss arising on initial recognition and subsequent changes in
fair values less costs to sell of biological assets is recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method, and include expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition. In case of manufactured inventories
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of
the production overheads based on normal operating
capacity. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
OCCUrs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash as defined above.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
deposit with bank and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 to 90 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance amount
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other
financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and loans from controlling
shareholders) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material). When some or all of the economic
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of property,
plant and equipment for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses reported and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

The assessment of the going concern assumptions involves
making judgements by the management, at a particular
point of time, about the future outcome of events or
conditions which are inherently uncertain. The Directors of
the Company consider that the Group has ability to continue
as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or
collectively may cast significant doubt about the going
concern assumptions are set out in note 1.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Classification of joint arrangement
&N T i 48 4% BH B BR A A] (‘Bawang Tata”) is a

limited liability company whose legal form confers separation
between the parties to joint arrangement and the Group.
Although the Group has 51% interest in Bawang Tata, it is
stated in the Articles of Association of Bawang Tata that
two-third votes are required in the decision making process.
Furthermore, there is no contractual arrangement or any
other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties
to the joint arrangement have rights to the assets and
obligation for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, Bawang Tata was classified as a joint venture
of the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
on a straight-line basis between the rates of 5% to 50% per
annum, commencing from the date the property, plant and
equipment are available for use. The estimated useful lives
that the Group places the property, plant and equipment
into productive use reflects the Directors’ estimate of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB154,999,000 (2014: RMB225,340,000). Depreciation
of approximately RMB17,277,000 (2014: RMB26,998,000)
has been recognised for the year.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated useful life of property, plant and
equipment (continued)

During the current year, the Directors of the Company
determined the useful lives of certain items should be
revised, due to the low utilisation rate of machinery with
shrinking revenue. The financial effect of the reassessment,
assuming the assets are held until the end of their estimated
useful lives, ranges from decreasing the Group’s loss by
approximately RMB3,213,000 to increasing the Group's loss
by approximately RMB3,680,000 for the years ending 31
December 2016 to 2024.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2015, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables
was approximately RMB64,869,000 (2014: RMB68,168,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
RMB9,521,000 (2014: RMB4,712,000).

Allowance of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each class of inventories is recognised as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business less the estimated costs to
completion and the estimated expenses and related taxes
necessary to make the sale. For inventories with committed
sales orders or active market, the Group estimates the net
realisable value with reference to the selling prices set out in
the committed sales orders or in the active market. For
inventories without committed sales orders or active market,
the Group carefully estimates the net realisable value based
on available information and reasonable and supportive
assumptions on expected selling prices, manufacturing
costs, selling expenses, sales tax and etc. As at 31
December 2015, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately RMB40,909,000 (2014: RMB52,039,000),
net of accumulated allowance of approximately
RMB1,319,000 (2014: RMB2,036,000).

In considering the impairment losses that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, recoverable
amount of these assets needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value because quoted market prices for these
assets may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of revenue and
amount of operating costs and discount rate. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
revenue and operating costs. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
approximately RMB154,999,000 (2014: RMB225,340,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB114,597,000 (2014: RMB60,235,000).
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can
only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
unused tax credits can be utilised, management judgement
is required to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

The Group’s biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell for financial reporting purposes. The
management determines the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. The financial controller reports the
valuers’ findings to the Directors of the Company to explain
the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
of biological assets

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of the assets. Note 20 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of biological
assets. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
biological asset was approximately RMB588,000 (2014:
RMB601,000).

Provision in respect of litigation

Provision for the expected cost of legal obligations is
recognised at the Directors’ best estimate and with
reference to legal advice of the expenditure required to settle
the Group’s obligations. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of provision is approximately
RMB3,826,000 (2014: RMB2,044,000). Details are set out
in note 25.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain
future development of the business. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the loans from controlling shareholders
disclosed in note 33(h), net of bank balances and cash and
deposit with bank and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

EXRERERE

AEBMBEE R BEBREAN
it URBERARTBED -
MREHBBRNEBER A%
BREREAEFRETE -

AEENERNEBRREERFR
(‘B & Bff FE33(h) ¢ B8 MY 2 B AR 3R
B HBRRITEF RRE) A
NAES A ARG ED (BREK
RAERE)

ZANY/NISID SN N = NI
SN E AR E R I -

ARRESBHXFEEMNELNE
B-ERER EFEEELAK
AREESRHNENERZ AR -
REARBDEFTZZ A5EK
BRBETHBA  BOTHEH X
BRRAEGR UFGHHEERE
RORE -
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(a)

(b)

6. Financial Instruments $RTE
Categories of financial instruments (a) €M TITAER
2015 2014
—E-HF  ZT—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T AR T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including B K EWSRIA
cash and cash equivalents) (BREE X
S ZEY) 91,412 102,514
Financial liabilities cHEes
Other financial liabilities at DA SH PR AR B BR 2
amortised cost EmEemasE (204,532) (200,318)
Financial risk management objective and (b) EREAREEHRRBE
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade AEEBITESRIABE
and other receivables, deposit with bank, bank B hEMEWRHIE BT
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts ER -ROEFEBR: B

due to related parties and loans from controlling
shareholders. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

6. =R T A

b) eREEETEEARRBE

policies (continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 5% (2014: 5%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entity making
the sale. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. The Group will monitor
foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(#&)

™ i5 R IS

=g

ARRETZHEMNBRRZ
HERIINEHE AEEHA
i INE R e NERELD
5% (= —UFE :5%) 2 #H
EUEBEERINEEE AN
CEBSGE -AEEB AW
EBAEMINEEFBER - A&
EgEmIERR WA Y
2R NMEEELHPEKNI
IE @ B o

REBUAINEFEBZEEE
EREEBEREZRIRZ
BREEMT

Assets Liabilities
BE =R

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-EHF ZE-WOFE ZE-HF —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT AR®TTT
RMB NG 185 3,821 (6,820) —
Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”) & ([# T ]) 2,153 3,024 (13,414) (6,811)
United States Dollar (‘USD”) =T ([£ 7)) 33 1 — —
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. £t T Hu)
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) EMAKREEAERBE
policies (continued) (&)
Market risk (continued) HiEEE ()
Currency risk (continued) B E R (8)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE D
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB, AEBTZEEHAREK B
HK$ and USD. TRETEERRE -
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% TRFAFVAEEREBHINE
(2014: 5%) increase and decrease in exchange rates HEEFREENGEE ﬁ%@ Z
of the relevant foreign currencies against the respective fE X FFA & THE%(ZF —
entity’s functional currency. 5% (2014: 5%) is the WEE 5%) ZHBEE 5%
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency (ZE—NFE 5%) 2 &
risk internally to key management personnel and BRE - TRRALEMEEEIE
represents management’s assessment of the A B [E 3 90 FE & b iS5
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. j[ BE B E Y NI E KT
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding BRI A BEFH ZT(H -
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and @ﬁ( REDWEBRERLBNU
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting SNEEHEZE®IER TR
period for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign currency ERPRESN (T — M ¢
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in € :6%) v EXEEHFHEH
post-tax loss where the respective functional BE o NRIIRZIEHBER
currencies of the reporting entity weaken 5% (2014: 5%) 1 & X ERERRI) L 5 548
against the relevant foreign currencies. For a 5% (2014: BONE R ES% (Z T — M 4F
5%) strengthening of the respective functional E:5%)RfHEEBRDZ
currencies against the relevant foreign currencies, SiEE - (WABRA TN RE & X AR
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the 9N EE FH{EE% ( — & — PO &
loss, and the balances below would be negative. € :5%) KeHEEEKS
HEMHRZTZE MTIRZ
ERIEREH -
RMB HK$ uUsD
AR BT EY
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-fHE —mF ZE-IF —F —E-IF —MmF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARBTT ARSTR ARETT AR® TR ARETRT
(note (a)) (note (a)) (note (b)) (note (b))
(Kt 7% (a)) (FFsE@)  (MaE®))  (FIEE(o))
Profit or (loss) & 1 3 (& 18) (328) 160 (476) (163) 1 -
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. €T Hu)
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) eHEAKREEEERBEK
policies (continued) (&)

Market risk (continued) FiHRE (&

Currency risk (continued) R R (8)

Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRRE 5T (88)

Notes: B A -

(@  Thisis mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank @ WHEEAREZ2REARAA
balances and cash denominated in RMB at the end of the REAENERITEFERIE ST
reporting period. A 7 BB FTE

(o)  This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on loans (o) W EBHNESRARNE
from controlling shareholders and bank balances and cash TRHERMRITEFRReME
denominated in HK$ at the end of the reporting period. A% AR 5148 2P A 2 B AL IR P

g( °

Interest rate risk T & J7 e

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group is RZE—RAFR_ZE—NF

exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to +ZA=+—H ' A£EM®

bank balances and cash (note 23). No sensitivity WZIREREMERERBER fﬁ
analysis is presented because the risk is considered TEFER S (M:E23)

insignificant. %R B BN E 2T @Z

RRE D HT °

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group is also RZE-—NFN_T—RHF

exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to +-—_A=+—8" K EEm®

fixed rate deposit with bank (note 23). No sensitivity HAnBEMNXRRBEARIR

analysis is presented because the risk is considered 1TFE (KT #E23) - ERZ A

insignificant. BE /N W EZY SE

DT °

Credit risk = & R b=

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum R-_E—HRHFE+_A=+—

exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss B AEEz&=EERER

to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation (A G A AREEEBITEERAE

by the counterparties is arising from the carrying EEIERZTHBERMES A

amount of the respective recognised financial assets SEEZHBKELR) KREKIE

as stated in the consolidated statement of financial ERMEENGASV IR ER

position. Frol 2 BRE{E o
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC, which
accounted for 97% (31 December 2014: 95%) of the
total trade receivable as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has concentration
of credit risk of 22% (2014: 15%) and 44% (2014:
35%) of the total trade receivables, which was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation.

6.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (continued)

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash on demand to meset its liquidity requirement in
the short and longer term; this excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk as the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB56,852,000 (2014: RMB26,364,000).
The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations and the details of which are set

out in note 1.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest

rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

6.

LR T B
(b) SREAREEEFERBF
(%)
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

6. =Rt T AR

b) eMERETEEARRBE

(%)

e Bh e R B (5)

Repayable More than
ondemand 1 year but Total
or within less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years cash flows amount
RER
EHES ZR-F XHFRRS
—FR BIRWME TREAG AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TT ARETRT
At 31 December 2015 N-ZE—TF
+=ZBA=+-H
Non-derivative financial T4 ¢ mEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 K £ th & (- 218 142,285 - 142,285 142,285
Amounts due to related JE TR & 5 3R
parties 7,301 - 7,301 7,301
Loans from controlling ¥R % A% BR B X
shareholders - 60,578 60,578 54,946
149,586 60,578 210,164 204,532
At 31 December 2014 R-IE—WE
+=ZBA=+-H
Non-derivative financial T4 ¢ mEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 K E {th & 5 218 150,041 — 150,041 150,041
Amounts due to related FETERE 75 3R
parties 6,208 — 6,208 6,208
Loans from controlling REAERBRRNER
shareholders — 48,484 48,484 44,069
156,249 48,484 204,733 200,318
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of current financial assets and
current financial liabilities recognised at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2015 and 2014 approximate their fair
values due to the short maturities. The fair value of
non-current loans from controlling shareholders equals
its carrying amount.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable of the goods sold to customers, net of discounts
allowed, sales return, volume rebates and sales related
taxes where applicable.

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on a mixture of product lines and
geography. The Directors of the Company have chosen to
organise the Group around differences in products. The
segments are managed separately as each operating
segment offers different products which require different
production information to formulate different strategies. No
operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under IFRS 8 are as follows:

o Hair-care products
o Skin-care products

o Other household and personal care products

6.

col - =N

() LaRnBEMNEZ&MT
&

RARABEERB BREA
MHBRRARDESBREER
npeMmBEEER =T —1
FRZFE—NF+ZA=T
—HEHREE WEE@
BHREURDAEE  ZEREK
RWERBERZAAEE
HHEmERS -

ExBEkoBER

EXRBEARELETERPMNE
WA BRITH - HERF - HER
EREBEHEHER(MER)KND
WK B MK

RIEEMmRERSEME/LS
MEBERD EMFHDIBRRT
AL AEO>MAEERAR
ARTES(ANE2ZEERRE)
HBE-RARAEFERERED
RIEmMmMAB DM ZHMIER
BHBENERSHMBEER
EEKEOHREEN -TBEE
BRRERRANKELBAILAEG
HEHRKLEDE -

RIBEBE RIS RS ERFSE &
SEZARENELEDES

s HEEM
s EEEM

o HAZRMAMEAEEEM®R

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_ZT-—RAF+_A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

An operating segment regarding herbal tea products was
discontinued in the year ended 31 December 2013. The
segment information reported below does not include any
amounts for this discontinued operation, which is described
in more detail in note 13.

Also, the Executive Directors of the Company are provided
with segment information concerning segment revenue and
result. Segment assets and liabilities are not reported to the
Executive Directors of the Company regularly.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results from continuing operations by reportable and
operating segments.

%

MEEDSBER @

REBRBEE-_Z—=F+_A#
=+ —HIEFEAKRLEEERR
DEHWER  UTE2HABZTTE
FHEERIEMERER B&
IERREREBOFBHNM T
18-

uu]

$”‘ﬂﬂ’]$§l’_§$§%%ﬁiﬁfﬂ“
MBEAMDBEEANEE Mo
MEENXENEENTETEH
AARAMITEERS °

SEUARRIR

AT RAEBEZAIRENFEL
EDRUWAREEDH -

Continuing operations

Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HttZAR
EEER EEEM BAEERER At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-1f ZT-WNE ZB-If C—T-NmF =ZT-IF —FT-WNF ZF-IF —FT-0NF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFR AR®TR ARETRT ARETR AR®TT AR%®Tn ARET:
Sales 1o external customers 5% FHNBE P 200,057 256,474 7,138 14,084 24,986 24,091 232,181 294,649
Segment loss HHEE (70,597) (81,283) (3,013) (1,459) (21,788) (19,798) (95,398) (102,540)
Changes in fair value less £ EE R #
costs to sell in respect BEREE
of biological assets RANEHER (122) (1,782)
Bank interest income HITH WA 620 540
Other income Helg A 1,164 2,238
Share of loss of a joint EEAEDNFEE
venture (696) -
Waiver of capital injectionin A% A4 A aTE
a joint venture 696 -
Corporate and other APBz B E
unallocated expenses Hph (13,087) (12,167)
Finance costs BERA (3,755) (1,830)
Loss before taxation REEE 2B
(continuing operations) BiE (110,578) (115,541)
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7. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the loss from each segment
without allocation of changes in fair value less costs to sell of
biological assets, bank interest income, gain on sales of
scrap materials, government grants, net exchange gains/
losses, provision for litigation recognised/reversed, write-off
of other receivables, central administration cost, directors’
emoluments and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the Executive Directors of the Company for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Other segment information

EEERDEER @)

SEBUA B ¥R (E)

DB & AT R B ST
M2 AEEHNEABR R0
MEBEEDHMABREZEE
ERYESREMEENRAE

ERNER AN B BE  RIT
M SWA - BB BEFHRE - BUT
By - BN s BRI ARAART
RE MR/ AL HAh R KR
MsE - PREEKAN  EFEFHIIA
RBEKAK - W RERDE R
RRFEMARARBAZAITES
HEZTETA

Htt o 8EH

Continuing operations

Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HtRAR
BEER EEER BAREER At
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
“Z-1f ZT-QWF ZZ-nfF ZT-QWNF =-ET-1HFfF ZT-QmF =-E-HF =ZT-QNF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETFT AR®TR ARBTR AR%TR ARETR AR¥TT ARETR
Amounts included inthe &5 B4 RE
measure of segment B ARE
results
Depreciation of property, 1%+ BiE &
plant and equipment REWNE 13,508 21,913 572 1,272 3,197 3,813 17,277 26,998
Impairment loss recognised  #1% + B &
in respect of property, RiEZRE
plant and equipment BRER 46,843 37,650 1,671 1,358 5,850 3,536 54,364 42,544
(Gain) loss on disposal of &%
property, plant and EUET
equipment (Mez)BE (44) 36 @ 2 (5) 3 (1) 41
Impairment loss recognised & 5 & U 5 I8 2
in respect of trade EBRER
receivables 4,143 63 148 3 518 6 4,809 72
Reversal of write-down of 77 & KB @
inventories (1,361) (742) (115) 63) (161) 88) (1,637) (893)
Write-down of inventories T E % E 608 1,000 28 62 160 194 796 1,256
Write-off of inventories GFERE 2,655 7,120 2,715 1,700 736 1,088 6,106 9,908
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s continuing operations are mainly located in the
PRC (country of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and biological assets.

HEZH

AEEREREEBIEEDE
REIREE (FRERBIZ) MEE ©

BEPHMEL R RIERH‘RE
IRXNERNUEETE - FFRH
BEMNWEUEDREBEEEER
FFEVE(NBEYE BFE k&
W UREMEE) MEE -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REHBEFHBA FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HF ZE-NF ZE-HF —_T—NHNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARE®TT
PRC (country of domicile) PR (FTEBXR) 220,283 278,995 154,537 224,622
Hong Kong BB 5,011 9,951 624 893
Singapore #hn 2,700 1,241 — —
Thailand & 2,933 2,007 - —
Malaysia Bk 899 2,131 - —
Others HAth 355 324 - —
Total @t 232,181 294,649 155,161 225,515

Information about major customers FEEFRER

Included in revenue arising from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2015 of approximately RMB232,181,000
is revenue of approximately RMB31,703,000 which arose
from sales of hair-care products and other household and
personal care products to the Group’s largest customer.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, included in
revenue of approximately RMB294,649,000 is revenue of
approximately RMB63,877,000 which arose from sales of
hair-care products and other household and personal care
products to the Group’s largest customer. No other single
customer contributed more than 10% to the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

HE-_Z—AF+=-A=+—8H
HFE BELCEERHEHERY
A R #232,181,000 » H b 44 & &
EEMIEMARAREAAZERE
MEAEBEEATEFHNHOARE
31,703,000 & = — & — /O F +
“A=Zt+—HLEFE HEBY
A R #294,649,000  H b § & &
EEMEMARAREAAERE
MEAEBRSEREFMOMAR
#63,877,000 - H & = Z — U F
—E—RF+_A=+—HLHF
E - AEBRSEEME—RFE
EBAEEEETEN10% -
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8. Other Income 8. HAthlg A
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-WOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T

Continuing operations BEREER

Bank interest income RITH B A 620 540

Gain on sales of scrap materials B A - 1,205

Gain on disposal of property, BEEYHF WER

plant and equipment BYL e 51 —

Recovery from litigation claim (note a) FAREE] Eﬁ & (Mtska) - 680

Net foreign exchange gains IZEL W F 58 - 12

Reversal of provision for litigation FENET IR ;%? A% - 120

Government grant (note b) B KT 47 B (FfY 5 b) 802 —

Others Hfb 362 221

1,835 2,778

Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2014, a claim against other party in Wita:- HE=E=ZZ—WOF+=-A=1+—H
respect of purchase of petroleum was settled by mediation and an IEFER - HEMARBEL D
amount of RMB680,000 (2015: nil) was recovered by the Group. RECHAR AEEEEARYE

680,000 (= —HFH : &)

Note b: Included in the amount of government grants recognised during the year Wb H@E2—_ZT—H&E+_A=+—8"
ended 31 December 2015 of approximately RMB802,000 were received BERR#ED2EOR/RARE
from the PRC government in respect of certain research projects and 802,000 ' & HER T H KR
export encourage scheme, the relevant granting criteria for which have KEHREBEEME OB EED
been fulfilled and were immediately recognised as other income for the BREEMBERS R EFHER
years. BEMUA -

9. Finance Costs 9. BB
2015 2014
—E-RF —TNOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T AR T T
Continuing operations FERE

Imputed interest on non-interest bearing ERBRESMERZ

loans from controlling shareholders HEMNE 3,755 1,830

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited % F BB (% @)1= B R A
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10. Taxation

(@)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”’), a
PRC subsidiary of the Group, was qualified as a HNTE
in 2009 and the qualification was renewed and valid
until 2015. However, Bawang Guangzhou did not have
any assessable profits subject to Enterprise Income
Tax for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 as
the Group does not have any assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2015 and 2014.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for the
current and previous years.

10. B8

(@)

REGFBELEMSEHE(LR
ERBBED) REEMEMN
EEED > AEEHME R
AMMEE T NF— A
— A 525% e

RECEMGENRAAFEE
FEaENtE(EHE
MeEEDEE MESZE
I ETLNZE15%HE
BERE-FIT(EMN)BERAD
AHEEEMN])  SEH—
MPEHBERAR R_ZTE
NFEERE BB N EIME
¥ UTHAWRERZER
ERE-_ZT—RHF R
HE_Z—FHFEER_Z—
F+-_A=Z+—HIEFE -
FITEMIL B E A E B
EFEH 2 ERE R A -

MEFEZEENERIERE
AR T 16.5% KT < &
EZT-MEM-_FT-ALF
tT-A=+—BLFE &
SETSBETRNAINED
PRS2 IEER B A - P LA
—E-MEEM_ZT—RF
B EREABEH -

REFSES MEBRE XA
50 R ARG AR EE
ARUAREARNFEHNRE
HELRRBREABESHNEM
BiIA -
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10. Taxation (continued)

(@

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules of the EIT Law,
overseas investors of foreign investment companies
shall be liable for withholding income tax at 10% on
the dividend derived from the profits of PRC
subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2008, unless
the tax rate is reduced by treaty. Pursuant to the Sino-
Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangements, the investor
established in Hong Kong which the beneficial owner
is holding not less than 25% of the equity interests of
its PRC subsidiaries can enjoy a reduced withholding
tax rate of 5% on the dividend received from its PRC
subsidiaries. The Group does not make provision of
withholding income tax for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 since the PRC subsidiaries
incur losses in both years.

10. Fi 18 (@)

©)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7

BECEMGHEEEK
B -BFEFENF—H—H
B BRIEEKRAOBIEEE
NI ECENEGINEE R
AgRkEaPENBRR G
I B BT 10%TE T 15
Ho-RBiE@#EPEMHES
BMMLH REBA LK
BEEWNMRBAETREKNE QA
TER2B%EZBE AT S
EAAAEZREHFBE
B8 A | R AR B/ B R TE
HEEs % -ARFRHWB L
RIYELEEBE ARAER
HE_Z—HFEER_Z—O
FH+_A=+—HLEFEY
RABFIRTEHAMEH -
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10. Taxation (continued)

10. Fi 18 (@)

Taxation for the years can be reconciled to the loss before FAMRBHEGAERR ZHATE
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as BEERWOT :
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HFE —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR%®FTr
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Loss before taxation A& (110,578) (115,541)
Tax calculated at the domestic income AR H P15 BB R 25%
tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) TEZWRIE
(ZE—UFE : 25%) (27,645) (28,8895)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMBDEERKLE 2
operating in other jurisdictions TRMEZ R TE 3,388 2,940
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ER 2B
for tax purpose A 2,691 6,602
Tax effect of share of loss of ajoint venture  JE{5 & & A G] 18 HY
MBTE 174 —
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBIWA 2 B
tax purpose e (1,527) (1,062)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERBEEE 2 T
2 7,540 11,706
Tax effect of other deductible temporary oK RE R A R T R
differences not recognised ERABGEE 15,399 8,789
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL ARERZHEE
not recognised &8 (20) (90)
Taxation 18 — _

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 26.

EIETR IR R M 526 ©
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11. Loss for the Year from Continuing M. FEKE

Operations 2]

=Rt

Loss for the year from continuing operations has been

arrived at after charging (crediting):

(FFA) THIER -

EERBZ2FRNE

FEREEBZRMEBERE HE

2015 2014
—E—RE —ET—UFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR%®FTr
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 847 737
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRERAI Z2FEKAK
expense (note (a)) (Bt 5% (a)) 143,893 184,417
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - BEIRETE
equipment 17,277 26,998
Impairment loss recognised in respect of M- WEREEZ
property, plant and equipment BEEKER GTA
(included in other expenses) HiER) 54,364 42,544
Impairment loss recognised in respect = % JEW K IE 2 RE
of trade receivables BRER 4,809 72
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEEVE BMENMEE
equipment 18 2K - 41
Net foreign exchange loss b 3 5 8% /B 171 —
Provision for litigation (included in FATIRBAGIA
administrative expenses) THER) 3,487 —
Research and development costs MR AR ZHEKRAKA
recognised as an expense 8,697 10,036
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEKERDGFA
(included in cost of inventories recognised NEHRBRAXZ
as an expense above) FERKA) (1,637) (893)
Staff costs (note (b)) 8 TRA (BT 3E (D) 69,713 74,854
Write-down of inventories (included in FEKEGIANK L®R
cost of inventories recognised as an BRAXZEFEERA)
expense above) 796 1,256
Write-off of inventories (included in FEWmEE (GT AN LR
cost of inventories recognised as an BRI ZTFEERA)
expense above) 6,106 9,908

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited £ T B ¥R (£ #)
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11. Loss for the Year from Continuing N BEEEEBE ZFAE
Operations (continued) =1C )
Notes: B2
(a) Cost of inventories recognised as an expense from continuing operations (a)

12.

included depreciation of property, plant and equipment and staff costs of
approximately RMB15,089,000 (2014: RMB24,610,000) and
RMB17,069,000 (2014: RMB21,385,000) respectively. The amounts were
also included in the respective amounts disclosed above.

SEEEEBIERARIZFE

RABEDE BELSENTER
BIKAD B4 A AR15,089,000
(ZZE—HFE: AR%24,610,000)
M AR#17,069,000( = F — U FE :
AR ¥21,385,000) - LA L& BEHE H
FBEEALEESES -

(o)  Staff costs from the continuing operations included redundancy costs of by BBE_ZE-—RFT_A=+—HIE
approximately RMB4,221,000 (2014: RMB889,000) for the year ended 31 FE RFECEEBREIRABE
December 2015. EHMBRAHARK4221,000( =2 —

M4 E - ARMES89,000) °
Staff Costs 12. B TR K
2015 2014
—E-RF CZT—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARE&ET T
Continuing operations BEREEK
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) E T A (BIEES
comprise: B &) -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e AL REA 62,814 70,594

Contributions to retirement benefits schemes & K78 | 5+ &I £t 2% 2,678 3,174

Termination benefits BriR 18 7 4,221 889

Equity-settled share-based payment VA R # 23 45 & 30 AR 19

REREH N - 197
69,713 74,854
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13. Discontinued Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors of
the Company resolved to discontinue the production and
sales of its herbal tea products due to the unsatisfactory
financial performance of the business of the herbal tea
products with effect from 1 July 2013.

As the herbal tea products segment represented a separate
major line of business of the Group in prior years, the
discontinuance of production and sales of herbal tea
products has constituted a discontinued operation during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

The results of the herbal tea products operation for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

13. DR IL & EFE

REBEEZT—=F+=ZRA=+—
HEFEA BRRAXEMKLE
MRTEE AARIERERTER
—T-ZFtEtA—BEEFELERHE
EMNEEREE -

ENEFRERREMDBRERT A
SE-EEBNIBERR 5
LESRZREE dn B9 AR B AN 85 & B B
BHE_ZT-—=%+-A=t+—H
LFEERERIEEEETR -

RARERFEBHE_ZT—AFR
“TE-MOE+ZR=+—RHIF
EEEEMT

2015 2014

—E-HFE —T—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR%®FTr
Administrative expenses THEA () (40)
Other expenses Hi&H - (876)
Loss before taxation A& 1B () (916)
Taxation BIA — _
Loss for the year FANEE ()] (916)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7
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13. Discontinued Operation (continued)

Loss for the year from discontinued operation includes the

1 3 EI I\\\ lgég 'LJ\ % ﬁ% ij

ERIEREXEBNFABEERA

following: AR&IE -
2015 2014
—E-HEFE —ZE@OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR® T T
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BEMREITE
equipment - 18
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BREWME WENMKE
equipment (included in other expenses mig sk (GT AN L
above) Hi&R) - 86
Provision for litigation (included in other FAFTEREAGIANRE
expenses above) HEMmER) - 662
Write-off of trade and other receivables 5 N H b e Y SR TE 8
(included in other expenses above) GTAREEMER) - 128

No tax charge or credit arose on loss on discontinuance of

RIEREXB BB BEEME

the operation. AR 2T IEE -
Net cash (outflows) inflows on discontinued operation are as ERIEKEEBH 2B R FEY
follows: ES N
2015 2014
—E-RF _ZE-MOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%®Tr
Operating activities KEES () (67)
Investing activities KEED — 50
(3) (17)

14. Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 BHE—
December 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2014: nil).

14. |2

T-H%+-A=+—H
I 4 36 % 4 5§ % T 7 1%
B 6 2 6 ik I8 B 1
BE(ZB—MERE: ).
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15. Loss Per Share

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
from continuing and discontinued operations of
approximately RMB110,581,000 (2014: RMB116,457,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,911,460,912 (2014: 2,910,971,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the period.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company
is based on the loss for the year from continuing operations
of approximately RMB110,578,000 (2014: RMB115,541,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,911,460,912 (2014: 2,910,971,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the period.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation attributable to owners of the Company is RMBO
cents per share (2014: RMB0.03 cents per share), based on
the loss for the year from the discontinued operation of
approximately RMB3,000 (2014: RMB916,000) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted loss
per share.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the
diluted loss per share is same as the basic loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options since their exercise
would result in a decrease in loss per share.

15. BRE#E

REFREERBROBLLE
BEXE

RAAREBEABEREFELE
¥R RERIECEXEB 2 SRE
AR EEBEERBFELE:
BRERIECEER 2 FRNEE
4 A R #110,581,000( = & — M
FE: AR #116,457,000) & HA
NEZRTEBRBRMEFHIEHEY
2,911,460 912 (ZE — W F [Z :
2,910,971,000/%) 5+ & -

REBHEEERD

AABBEBEARLBFELEEK
CEHEBREARBEBEEBRERER
BREXBZFANEBEBHARE
110,578,000( = —HFE : AR
#115,541,000) X Bl A B 1T E @
% 0 # - 15 £ 492,911,460,912 %
— T —[FE :2,910,971,0000%)
FTE -

REERIEEERY

ARAREEABEERIEEEE
BZBREARBESEAAR
BOII(ZE—NFEE: ERAR
#0.031L)  ERBERIELEHE
BZFRNEEBLHARES000(=
T—NFE: AR%916,000) & £
NHLEREAREEEIBA
ZAOEETE -

BE-T-RFR-_T-MFT
“AEtT-RLEFEENEREE
BESRSRERNER -

BHRITERBRERRDSRE
B AUNEFEBE-_T—1F
MZZE-—NMN=%+_HA=+—8H
TFEEREBEETERE  WER
R AT E AL o] AR ) EY R B
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16. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 16. EERTETHAES
Emoluments =
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2014: PN ENEEZ(ZE—NFE:
eight) Directors and the chief executive were as follows: NB)EERFETHRABZHE
wmr
For the year ended 31 December 2015 gFE_E—ARE+_H=1+—
BiEFEE
Mr. CHEN
Zheng He
Mr. CHEN (Chief Mr.
Qiyuan Ms. WAN Executive Mr.WONG Dr.NGAI CHEUNG
(Chairman) Yuhua Officer) SinYung WaiFung Kin Wing Mr. LI Bida Total
WE&F;% BXgEut @Eﬁgﬁ% BERLLE REEEL RBRELE ZHEXE &t
1TE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARWTT ARBTR ARMTR ARBTRE ARMTR ARBTR AR¥ TR

(note (b))
(Bt 3 (b))
Emoluments paid or KA TR EME
receivable in respect of DNANESH
a person’s services as HBEBZAR
a director, whether of FE W B &
the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking
Fees we - - - - 241 161 161 563
Other emoluments Hinii &
Salaries and other benefits He o EZEN
=Xl - - 116 964 - - - 1,080
Contributions to retirement 38 fk 4@ F 51 2
benefits scheme o - — 6 14 - — — 20
- - 122 978 241 161 161 1,663
For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE_FT—NMFE+_HA=+—
AIEFE
Ms. WAN
Mr. CHEN  Yuhua (Chief Mr.
Qiyuan Executive ~ Mr.CHEN ~ Mr. WONG Dr.NGAI  Mr. CHEN CHEUNG
(Chairman) Officer) ~ Zheng He SinYung  WaiFung Kaizhi KinWing ~ Mr. LI Bida Total
K?EY/J(?I?E[_E) (ﬁggz‘% RIEBXE EERAE RREEET RAKLAE RERELE FYERL =h
il T8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTFT ARBTT ARBTRT ARKTT AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
(note (d)) (note (g)) (note (c))
(FiE(d) (Mze) (M)
Emoluments paid or KATH
receivable in respect of HItE AR
a person’s services as HWESER
a director, whether of HR#% =
the Company or its =W
subsidiary undertaking [ EA
Fees ok - - - - 238 79 21 158 496
Other emoluments Hini4
Salaries and other benefits e RER
&7 - - 114 951 - - - - 1,085
Contributions to retirement RIKEFIEE
benefits scheme HR - - 6 13 - - - - 19
Share-based payments PABR {7 A AT
(note (a)) 10 3 A
(M) - - - 60 - - - - 60
— — 120 1,024 238 79 21 158 1,640
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16. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(@) These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
Directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these
share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 3. The details of
these benefits-in-kind, including the principal terms and number of options
granted, are disclosed in note 28.

(b) The director resigned on 9 December 2015
(c) The director was appointed on 13 November 2014.
(d) The director was appointed on 20 October 2014.

(e) The director resigned on 30 June 2014.

With effect from 9 December 2015, Mr. CHEN Zheng He is
also the chief executive of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above included those for services rendered by him
as the chief executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to 9
December 2015, Ms. WAN Yuhua was also the chief
executive of the Company and her emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him as the
chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the Directors waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014 nil).

16. EERETETHAEMM

& )
B 2

@ ZERRBARABRESERT
BEERRENGIEE ZFBRE
MEEDZBASERNXNHOR
SR EARRAE FRMES Z
ERAOFE EERHBRENE
2R NBE - BN E28 -

b)) ZEFRZ-ZE—RAF+ZANLAH
£

© ZEER-_Z-DNF+—A+=H
BRE-

O ZEFR-_Z-—HNONF+AZ-TAHE
ZiT-

@ BEER-T-NEXA=+BE#
Lo

BE-_ZEZ—AF+_ANHEBE
B BREBEERETARAEE
WITE LB 2HFHRER
ETERATENRBHE -

RZE—WOE+=A=+—H
E-FE-—RAF+-_AhHEME:
EXELTEITARREERIT
BB EMEEEES
BEERNTENREME -

HE-_Z—FA+-_A=+—H1
FE ASEEEESRITES
MESRERETAHE (ZZT—
HERE : &\
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17. Employees’ Emoluments 17.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2014: three) were Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
16 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2014:
two) individuals were as follows:

2 T ¥

AfiEEeHFMALH —L (==
—UEFEE:ZM)ARES BEH
B LA LBt 516 B - B E Ath
—H(ZENEE: &S
FEALTHEFBEFBOT

2015 2014

—E-RF CZT—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AR¥F T

Salaries, allowances and benefits Fre o R RER 82 201
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIKE TREMEHEIH R 17 21
Termination benefits B R 13 A 575 —
Share-based payments Al R ERE N - 90
674 312

Their emoluments were all within nil to approximately
RMB837,800 (equivalent to HK$1,000,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) or other
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

EHFEME2BNTFEEARE
837,800 (#8% 1 7 7£ 1,000,000) °

REBEZ-_ZE—HFN_ZT—NF
+ZA=Z+—BHLEFEHME K
SEYESINME TASERA
BEeFrMAL(BEEERET)
ZEMES - FEREFMAIR
0B N 5 B R 2 22 B of 1F A B B
f1E o
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18. Share of Loss of a Joint Venture/Waiver of  18. FE{h & & N T E 1B
Capital Injection in a Joint Venture REENTEE
A joint venture, Bawang Tata, was formed in August 2015 FITHWERAAEEET FRF
between a subsidiary of the Company and an independent BEBYE=FTN_Z—FHF )\ H
third party. The Group had intended to develop a network B H A /\ BANA e NEEEB
platform for distribution of its product through the joint ST RBEPEFEH fﬁ ?
arrangement. The Group held 51% interest in Bawang Tata e ANEBEFTMHMTIFEES1%
but no capital has been injected by the Group. In December RIARHE B8 BEAER - ERAF
2015, the Group decided to terminate the project as several LFXPEBRFLTEAE-_ZE—EFT
network platforms in the PRC suffered a slump in their YERNEET B AEEBR_ZT
operations since the second half of 2015 and therefore —HEFE T ARERIEZEER
decided to dispose of the 51% interest to an independent B B51 %R EREEEERE
third party. By using equity method of accounting, the NE=Z S -ERKAEREZE
Group had to share the expenses incurred by Bawang Tata E I EHEHFTHHmE T —5
from August 2015 up to the date of disposal amounting to FNANNEERABILZEREY A
approximately RMB696,000. The disposal was completed AR ®696,0000 R =T —HF
on 30 December 2015 at a consideration of HK$1. As the ZA=ZTHUREBEITEE T
Group was waived from injection of any capital into the joint B K 49 A 696,000 5 12 5 18 1
venture through the disposal arrangement, a gain on BRhER BEEZEWHE 4%
disposal of approximately RMB696,000 was recognized in EZ T AMATANEREHEE
profit or loss as waiver of capital injection in a joint venture. B RPpEENANESBBELOAN
R, & 696,000 ;Z THEERER
TR o
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment 19. ¥ -HEKEE

Office
Leasehold Motor  equipment Display Construction
Buildings  Machinery improvements vehicles  and others furniture  in progress Total
KEHE BWAERE
EE B BRXHE ERIA kit RBREE HEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
COST BA
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MF
—A—H 5,494 118,342 137,199 11,817 22,326 918 81,493 377,589
Exchange realignment ERRE - - - (18) U] - - (25)
Additions NE - 181 75 — 14 19 950 1,239
Disposals e - (2,072) - (775) (726) - - (3579)
Transfer from construction in progress  E& BERZ T2 - 31 4,746 - - - (@,777) -
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-ME+=A
1 January 2015 =t-BEk=Z-1%
—A—H 5,494 116,482 142,020 11,024 21,607 937 77,666 375,230
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - 413 164 - - 577
Additions RE - 329 391 - 334 - 142 1,196
Disposals & - (14) - @) (209) - - (314)
Transfer from construction in progress & 52 T2 - 1,447 2,366 - 1,024 - (4,837) -
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+ZA
=+-A 5,494 118,244 144,777 11,346 22,920 937 72,971 376,689
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 23t E
At 1 January 2014 RZF-ME—-A—H 825 31,981 20,491 10,500 14,638 452 4,546 83,333
Depreciation provided for the year FRNEEE 247 9,648 13,196 229 3,326 352 - 26,998
Impairment loss recognised in BRRBHRZAE
profit or loss - 13,269 12,346 116 501 15 16,297 42,544
Eliminated on disposals HER Y - (1,618) - (710) (638) - - (2,966)
Exchange realignment EHAE - - - (15) @ - - (19
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-ME+ZA
1 January 2015 “+-BR-Z—1F
—A—H 1,072 53,280 46,033 10,120 17,728 819 20,843 149,890
Depreciation provided for the year FRFTERE 248 3,933 11,688 500 893 15 - 17,277
Impairment loss recognised in BRZBEZRE
profit or loss - 16,005 22,947 220 1,031 21 14,140 54,364
Eliminated on disposals HE B Y - (10) - @1) (189) - - (290)
Exchange realignment XA - - - 346 103 - - 449
At 31 December 2015
1,320 73,208 80,668 11,095 19,561 855 34,983 221,690
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2015
4174 45,036 64,109 251 3,359 82 37,988 154,999
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+=A
=T—H 4,422 63,202 95,987 904 3,884 118 56,823 225,340
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings EE

Machinery 1 23

Leasehold improvements KEMHENR M
Motor vehicles BT H

Office equipment and others MAERBEREAM
Display furniture RTEE

During the year, the Directors of the Company has
reassessed the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and resolved that the useful life of machinery
should be adjusted from 10 years to 15 years in view of the
low utilisation rate of machinery with the shrinking revenue.
The change in accounting estimate decreased the
depreciation charge and loss before taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use. Upon completion and commissioning for
operation, depreciation will be provided at the appropriate
rates specified above.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors of
the Company conducted a review of the property, plant and
equipment which were used in the continuing operations
and determined that those assets were impaired with
reference to their value in use. Accordingly, impairment loss
of approximately RMB54,364,000 (2014: RMB28,413,000)
has been recognised under other expenses of continuing
operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The value in use calculation is determined based on the
financial budgets covering a eleven-year period (2014:
twelve-year period) which is reference to the estimated
useful life of the assets, and a pre-tax discount rate of
15.27% (2014: 15.51%) per annum, approved by the
management of the Group.

10. % - BERRE @)

HERERAME BERRZED
RASERERBFHBBEE
B 5 T 6 B 6 SR IR E A8 0K
e

20 years 204
15 years 154
10 years 104
5-8 years 5-84F
5 years 54

2 years 24

FRN ARREELHWE BEX
BERENTEAERFRETE
B TRIKRIZENRSE
XBEHEAMEREE  BURE R
BEZENFRSGH TERAE
E+RF-ZSFHAEERR
LEE_E-—RAF+_A=+—
BIEFE2INEBRRRATEIE -

ERTRETRFAE BEEEE
EEE LT WERATEAMN
R-BEXTTRRAEER K&
EXFEGEE L RFERERTE

HE-_Z2—AF+-_A=+—H
EFER AR EEYHYARE
BREEBHODE BEREE
ETTREYUZEENFERE
BEBEERBENZE - BEIER
K4 AR 543640000 = F —
g AR #28,413,000) B #
BRARNGEESRFELCEER
MEMERRN - HEENFERE
BEEAEEEEBR2EEEEN
HEERFR R AIFIIEX
1527% (=& — W F & : 15.51%)
MEEN+—FH(ZT—WF
B+ FH)UBEERGTE -
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a lawsuit was
filed by Bawang Guangzhou against a supplier in Guangzhou
Baiyun District Law Court (the “District Court”) for the
incomplete construction and unsatisfactory performance of
machinery provided by the supplier. On 2 February 2015,
the District Court issued a verdict for the lawsuit whereby (i)
the purchase contracts for the machinery were terminated; (ii)
the supplier should pay Bawang Guangzhou a sum of
approximately RMB22,518,000 representing purchase cost
paid and liquidated damages in addition to interest; and (i)
the machinery concerned should be dismantled and
removed from the factory of Bawang Guangzhou by the
supplier. Due to the non-performance of those machinery as
at 31 December 2014, the carrying value of the related
machinery amounting to approximately RMB14,131,000
was fully impaired during the year ended 31 December 2014
and the impairment loss has been recognised under other
expenses of continuing operations in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

10. % - BEKRRE @)

HEz-_Z-—-NUWF+=-_A=+—H
TFERN BETEMNRESHERS
KEAK z T2 K AT H 8 % &
HWREREBEERETE EEMNAE
xR ([ BsE PR |) ¥ IR #E 5F
meHEBEE_ZT—RF_A=-RH"
Hh [5 J% Be 65 b B FAVE H HR () R B
MR R ERBEARBWR L (i) H
ERASNBIERMNEFHOAR
¥ 22518,000 ° B S RBEA A - &
& R A B R (i)t FE B 7B IR R
B R 1 3% ﬁﬁﬁé%’aEFHIEﬁIE&
PR -BHE-_ZFT—NWF+=A
=+ —HLEFE BHRELEKE
MR RENEETE HEZ
BEMESHEOEEAEBARITOA
R #14,131,0002 & BURE © Z R
BEERAEHBERRNGEAEBEXRE
BIREEBNEMERNA -
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20. Biological Assets 20. = EE

Biological assets represent the growing herbs in the
cultivation base located in the PRC.

EWEERELNFBEARENE
EENERENRER-

2015 2014

—E-RF Z—T—@OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TT

At 1 January w—H—H 601 2,056

Changes in fair value less costs to sell AR EBEREEKAN

2HiEm (122) (1,782)

Plantation expenditure BEXH 254 366

Herbs harvested during the year FAWER | & % (145) (39)
At 31 December RT+—_A=+—H 588 601
Non-current portion JER BB 1D 162 175
Current portion EN B9 426 426
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 588 601

Plantation expenditure comprises those costs that are
directly attributable to the cultivation of herbs including
seeds, fertilisers, pesticides, direct labour, operating lease
charges on farmland and other direct costs.

Consumable biological assets which only have one harvest
in each planting are classified as current asset. Bearer plants
providing multiple harvests over years are classified as non-
current asset.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 139 (2014: 139)
hectares of growing herbs.

140 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B (% &) 5 ik &5 R A
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£YEE®

20. Biological Assets (continued) 20.

Biological assets are stated at fair value less costs to sell at
the end of the reporting period as estimated by an
independent appraiser using the net present value approach
whereby projected future net cash flows were discounted to
provide a current market value of the biological assets. The
fair value measurements of biological assets are categorised
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no
transfers among any levels of the fair value hierarchy for both
years.

The following unobservable inputs were used in level 3 fair

REFBHRRNENMEEAR LB
BREEKRNETHE HEE
ERBINFEEAFERE X
ETRHG HEBARKFR SR
BETHHR U EZREMEE
MIRITHSEE EMEEZR
REBEFERE/FIRAAEE

FH-PMEFE 2R EEFR
2 T 3 4 AT f) 88 % o

WTNAERZ_TE—RAFE+_A=+

—HEREMEESEIRAAEBE
FEZAABERER:

value measurements of the Group fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2015:

Relations of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TUBEERNEAAEBEZ
2RES

Range of unobservable inputs
Unobservable inputs (weighted average)

THEEEHR FABREREE (NEFI9E)

Growing herbs yield
— kg per hectare

30-550 (421) per year The higher the growing herbs yield,

the higher the fair value

Bz R E B £ £ 30-550 (421) BEHEEEERKES
- 85AHETFH NABEHES

Growing herbs price RMB3-RMB100 (RMB35) per kg The higher the market price,
the higher the fair value

BEZHFEEMELR -
AAEEBS

BEZHEEER BTRAR®B3-ARE100(ARE35)

Discount rate 11% (11%) per annum The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value

BEZPEEFRRLES
DA EEBIE

PR & FF11% (11%)
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20. Biological Assets (continued)

The following unobservable inputs were used in level 3 fair
value measurements of the Group’s biological assets as at

31 December 2014

Unobservable inputs

TABEESR

Range of unobservable inputs
(weighted average)

TABREENEE (NEFIFE)

20.

EYEE®

UFAR-F-—ME+=A=+
—BEBENAEFIRLABE
SHEZTRABRRER

Relations of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TOBERERNEAAEBERZ
e

Growing herbs yield
— kg per hectare

iE 2 P E WK
—BRETR

Growing herbs price

BEIHEEER

Discount rate

RS

30-550 (408) per year

£ 30-550 (408)

RMB3-RMB113 (RMB40) per kg

BTRARE3-ARB113(ARK40)

11% (11%) per annum

FFE11% (11%)

The discount rates used in the valuation of the biological
assets in the PRC at the end of the reporting period were
based on the market-determined pre-tax rate.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
biological assets, the highest and best use of the biological

assets is their current use.

142

The higher the growing herbs yield,
the higher the fair value

BREZHEZERKBS
AABEBES

The higher the market price,
the higher the fair value

BEZHPEETESES
ARBEYS

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value

BEFEEFTREMS -
AR BEEBE

REWBA ARFEEED &
MEEHECRZHTRRLER
45 B 5 2 LA K -

HERME E-—FEMAELE
HE-RAEBEEMEEZARE
EMs £MEEZRBREH
BERHEBARZEME-
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20. Biological Assets (continued) 20.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

£YEE®

EMEEZBRIEEINAAEE

biological assets on recurring basis: TEHER
2015 2014
—E-3F Z—T—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARE&ET T
At 1 January n—H—H 601 2,056
Addition NE 254 366
Changes in fair value due to MeeEEmMES 2
transformation N EBEEE (122) (1,782)
Transfer to inventory HEFE (145) (39)
At 31 December nt+—_A=+—H 588 601

The above changes in fair value for the year ended 31
December 2015 recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB122,000 (2014: RMB1,782,000) is presented as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Included in the changes in fair value is an amount of
approximately RMB122,000 (2014: RMB149,000) that is
attributable to the change in unrealised gains or losses
relating to biological assets held at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group is exposed to demand risks arising from
environmental and climatic changes. To mitigate these risks,
the Group does not rely on the self-supply of herbs, but also
sources herbs from a number of external suppliers.

HE-_Z—AF+_A=+—H
FFE UERBZHRERZA
ABEEZHYARK122000(=
T—-NFEE: AR®1,782,000) °
Hoy ARK122000(=F — M
FE . AR®A149,000) A R EE
BEOEREAREPRBELEY
BEMRBZAERABXEBEZ

29 -

7R £ B IR 45 AR R B L 2R
B SRERR - B R - AN &
BArAEEREAGNTESE . [
BahEgm—E8E A EER

SN -
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21. Inventories 21. 78
2015 2014
—E-1F Z—T—NWmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%®T
Raw materials JR M # 10,879 9,320
Work-in-progress ER S 1,583 1,655
Finished goods 2R o 19,267 26,495
Packing materials and consumable goods BEMBREE R 9,180 14,569
40,909 52,039

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was an
increase in the net realisable value following a decrease in
selling expenses. As a result, a reversal of write-down of
inventories of approximately RMB1,637,000 (2014:
RMB893,000) has been recognised and included in cost of

sales in the current year.

22. Trade and Other Receivables

RBEE-_ZT—AF+_A=+—
HitEFER: A&
R TEmEA Bt HARE
1,637,000 —E—MFE: AR
893,000) v FEMEEEFEHERLE

BFEERHEE

KERMRAFEBRRIEENX

ZNG

22. B RHEMEWFHIE

2015 2014
—E-1fF Z—ZET—WOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETTT
Trade receivables H 5’ GRIE 69,193 68,234
Less: allowance for impairment of BB S EWEIERE
trade receivables HE {5 (9,521) (4,712)
59,672 63,522
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials BB RM K TR RIE 1,655 819
Short-term prepaid advertising fee EHTEESER 44 667
Other receivables H b & W 5K I8 3,498 3,160
Total trade and other receivables 5 hHMEBWHIAES T 64,869 68,168
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers.

2. BEF REMEWNIE®

AEBEAFESZIEPTYTHEEY
fRABB0EIQK -

(@) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (a) BEXZR2N 2B FEN
net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables FHE(HBRE) R2HE K
presented based on the invoice date, which oM -
approximates the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period.

2015 2014

—E-1F ZT—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR T T

Less than 3 months LHA3E A 39,592 40,160

More than 3 months but less than Z N 3{E A8 R efE A 15,719 19,971

6 months

More than 6 months but less than Z 6 i AE L1216 A 3,651 3,385
12 months

More than 12 months Z 1218 A 710 6

59,672 63,522

(b) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
net of impairment, presented based on the due date at
the end of the reporting period:

(b) BEINHBEEI Z2E SR
HEBRRE) N 2HRB K
BT

2015 2014

—E-RF —T@WOF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR®TRT

Neither past due nor impaired Bl HA 40,301 41,612

Less than 3 months past due wmE LR 3ME A 14,213 17,865

More than 3 months but less than BHI3E61E A 2,666 2,779

6 months past due

More than 6 months but less than mEe=12M@ A 215 1,191
12 months past due

More than 12 months past due wmEZ M 1218 A 2,277 75

19,371 21,910

59,672 63,522
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 2. ES R HMEWKE @
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired I 4% 80 HA N2 R (B Y FE UK 3R IR
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there BREBELZ22EP  KEiH
was no recent history of default. I 4% 480 B <) SR RC 8% o
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are RERBAR AEEHE @
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HEEELREREBEZE S
approximately RMB19,371,000 (2014: RMB21,910,000) FEWHIBEEBRIEEDRBENOA
which are past due at the end of the reporting period R #19,371,000( — & — IY
for which the Group has not provided for impairment FE: AR ®21,910,000) °
loss. Receivables that were past due but not impaired 160 HA B 4= (E /Y FE Uk 3ro0E B
relate to a number of independent customers that have ETBIYRPAEE ZEX
a good track record with the Group. Based on past FEHRNREFNT ZREHR
experience, management believes that no impairment He-mAN EREETES 7(
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as #i BZEEHRDER
there has not been a significant change in credit quality AAZEWE - REBEAAE %&
and the balances are stil considered to be fully B EREEMAEETINZESE
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral EREFELERERE ~A&EH
over the trade and other receivables. I 4% Bt 5% 55 e U K B FE IR
RIEFBEMNER®D -
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 22.

(c) Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade

B 5 Kk H BRI (@)

(c) B 5 FE Yk E R (E BB 2

receivables: & -
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—@WOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT
At 1 January n—H—H 4,712 4,640
Impairment loss recognised ERRZBERK 4,809 72
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H” 9,521 4,712
At 31 December 2015, the Group’s trade receivables of RZE—RF+ZA=T
approximately RMB9,521,000 (2014: RMB4,712,000) —HB XEBEHARE
A

were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that full amount of these receivables is
unlikely to be recovered. Consequently full provision for
these doubtful debts was recognised. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

9,521,000 (= E — O F & :
R#4,712,000) K E 5 & U 3%
T4 B Bl SR8 1T R (E 1R
Ko ZE LB R R E D E
W % %gﬁ%kﬁﬁﬁﬁ
mMEEREFHRAETRE
U B B FE U GRIE o A it AR
EEEHZEREHREZ2H
BiE AEEVERZELE
BB EMAEES -

23. Deposit with Bank/Bank Balances and 23. f%%ﬂ'? BRITHEER

Cash

Deposit with bank

As at 31 December 2015, deposit with bank of
RMB20,000,000 (2014: RMB20,000,000, with maturity in
May 2015), with maturity in May 2016, carries interest at
fixed rate of 2.75% (2014: 3.25%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 December 2015, cash at bank carries interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001%
t0 0.35% (2014: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum.

BITER

N_T— £¢+ A=+—8"

iR 17 ¥ X A R % 20,000,000( —

= — EEF A R #20,000,000)
BR_ZE—AFREAZSH BAF
FFRE275% (2T — N FE

3.25%) °

HITHERAS®

R—_FE—RFEF+_A=+—8"
BTRSREBERTERIHF
FE0.001% E0.35% (= F — M4
E :0.001% Z0.35%) st & F & »
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24. Trade and Other Payables

24. B 5 R E & TR

2015 2014
—E-1F Z—T—NWmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%®Frx
Trade payables 2 5 & 5RIE 33,834 43,288
Receipt in advance S & sl 29,595 15,986
Payable for acquisition of property, R BE K&
plant and equipment REBEER 14,152 15,067
Promotion fee payable JENHEREE R 19,042 28,445
Accrued payroll B TE 1,012 2,713
Other payables and accrual Hibh I RIERTEIRE M 74,253 60,535
Total trade and other payables ZHRAEMENKIEBER 171,888 166,034
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables BEZZQHE2HAZY 2B 5 E
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the NHRERZ®RBRZ R DN
reporting period: T
2015 2014
—F-EF% ZT-@WEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR%®Frx
Within 1 month or on demand 118 A A B HA sk
mBMEE 32,856 39,702
After 1 month but within 3 months 118 A & 18 A 318 A W E & 978 3,586
33,834 43,288
The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. HEHERGLTHEEHRNN30E
The Group has financial risk management policies in place 2:0 H - KR & E 1 FE &Y i{ % & Bﬁz
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit 1’2’; % R OR 58 PR B RIR B
5 =

timeframe.
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25. Provisions CATIRER
Provision for litigation
FATRER
2015 2014
—F-HfF ZF@OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT AR¥ETT
At 1 January n—H—H 2,044 1,826
Provision recognised HRBRAER 3,487 662
Provision reversed TR EAEMD - (120)
Payment made B HIE (1,705) (324)
At 31 December nt+=—_A=+—H 3,826 2,044
Provision for litigation is made based on management best M s APTIL  BREAEFIEE A2

estimates and judgement, as described in note 4. Details of
the litigations are set out in note 34.

26. Deferred Tax 26.

The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

I FETL T

gEm

WRE IR B & 4 1 fl 5 A0 A - 5
A R RES4

TEREERBEEF AN RLARF

Undistributed
profits of PRC
subsidiary
B MR A R
R B R E
RMB’000
AR F T

At 1 January 2014,
31 December 2014 and 2015

RZE—NFEER—_F—HF
—RA—B +t-—A=+—8H

2,031
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26. Deferred Tax (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has unused estimated
tax losses of approximately RMB1,139,915,000 (2014:
RMB1,109,775,000) and RMB29,806,000 (2014:
RMB29,927,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC will expire in five years
from the year in which the loss originated, while the ones
incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire
under current tax legislation in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately RMB429,197,000
(2014: RMB367,601,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB2,031,000 (2014: RMB2,031,000) have been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the portion of the dividend declared in respect of profits
earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries.

26. IEERLIE (&)

R-_E—RF+-_A=+—8"
AEBEBGBARPREREES TH
B~ |3 K gt AT 008 A B RS S 1B
2 R4 A R #1,139,915,000( = =
—FE: ARKA1,109,775,000)
A R #29,806,000 ( — & — /g £
g AR#29027,000) c £
FRRIONBRARIMELE 2K
HKEEBBEREBZEBEBRBIR
ZEFRNINE MBEEENNB
RAEENBBEEETERESR
BIRTTH B A A M Em e

R—_ZE—AF+-_A=+—8"
AEBEBTHBRNEREEEZERENR
A R #429197,000( — & — /0
g AR ¥367,601,000)  iIf £ T
MAANNREREEZEMER 2
BEEMIBBEE  BAEK B

JERB mAMATKESHATEKMNE
BriE ZEEEHMER -

REHRBAR B A S B A B
BraafMzsEREEMNNH
HERAELEHBEEBEOAAREK
2,081,000(ZZE—HFE: ARK
2,031,000) °
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27. Share Capital and Reserves

27. B AR 16

(a) Share capital (a) B&=®
Number of
shares
R E B
000 RMB’000
F AREFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FRBIT0 2 T B
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 R Z_ZE—PQF — ﬂ EI
and 2015 ZE—OFEERZE—A1F
TZA=T— EI 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: EEITRATE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 HR_Z—mM&—H—H -
and 1 January 2015 —E-NFER-_T—RF
+—-_A=+—H 2,910,971 256,639
Issue of shares under share option ZEITRR = HARE 51 &I (B 53)
scheme (note) 840 66
At 31 December 2015 RZE—FRE+=-_A=+—H 2,911,811 256,705
Note: Misx -
Shares issued under share option scheme BEBRESETETHORE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, options were exercised to
subscribe for 840,000 (2014: nil) ordinary shares of the Company at a
consideration of HK$84,000, equivalent to approximately RMB66,000,
(2014: nil) which was credited to share capital. RMB1,627,000 (2014: nil)
has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium
account in accordance with policy set out in note 3.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

() Share premium

The application of the share premium account of
the Company is governed by the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds
in the share premium are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(b)

REE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—8
IEFERN BREFEABBITERE
288 AN A T 840,000 % L@ (=&
—FEE: &) IREENAET
84,000 (48 & M #) A R % 66,000) (=
T—NFE:E)RBFARK R
BWASMEM S EE AR
1,627,000 ZF —HF[Z : ) B &H#®
EAGEEERARE -

RiENEER A&

(i) BERE
RN B A & B/ FE B
xEﬁ BHERQREKE
{ )ﬁﬁ%ﬁa
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27. Share Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has
been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3.

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the
PRC subsidiary of the Group, Bawang
Guangzhou. Transfers to the reserves are
approved by the directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China)
Beverage Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign
owned enterprises established in the PRC, are
required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
(after offsetting prior year losses), as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory general reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital
under the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the entity. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder. No
appropriation to statutory reserves were made by
the PRC subsidiaries during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014, as they recorded
losses for both years.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate to
their existing percentage of equity interests
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

27. B AR f# ¥ @)
(b) REMHEERBAE(E)

(ii)

(iii)
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BA®ME
BFARREENEK
BARITROEN BHE
REFTHHNRALEE
17 08 B sESARX £ X2 7 1Y
A BERREAFEET
R

Bk T R
TEAERENREAR
68 7 B AR Bl R A5 B DA
AEBE P E B A A
BIENWRAERR
VoBENBEECDESR
TEMNESSHE-

ETEMERBIRET
REBEXZINEEE
¥ HEEAREBEPHE
FPAR B R ARG EEHE
i F &% 2 10% 8 7% %
(BEUNEFENEBE
BI)E—RETERE
BEEREBEESHEIRE
RAEERZEBHNRT
ERATHFMELRD
50% 5 IE o ¥ B = 3%
BERRMERFEAEA
DR BRI ET AR
FEMNBARREZE =
E-—HAFM_FT—NF
+ZA=Z+—HLEFE
BEBEE MUIT LA
M) T 7 8 88 B ()%
F o

— A EREE BIER
HWUEFENEBE(D
B) MAEBIERER
BAEANBEENRER
DA EREITHRK
N EREEE R AR
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27. Share Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International
Group Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired all the
equity interest of Bawang Guangzhou amounting
to USD12,500,000, which was previously held by
a company owned by the Controlling
Shareholders of the Group, at a consideration of
the same amount. Accordingly, the share capital
of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated and a
merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve
Translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the operations
outside the PRC into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in
the form of non-interest bearing loans to a
subsidiary as detailed in note 33(h). The amounts
are estimated by discounting the nominal value
of the non-interest bearing loans to the subsidiary
at an effective interest rate.

27. B AR f# 4 @)
(b) EEHEERAE(E)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

A

R_ZEZEL+F+ A
i o= N/ = = L 1)
BERAATEITEREHB
ER(BEE)BRRAF
LWREEERKEET
12,500,000/) % £ & N
2 EEE(Z BB ER
RERBEBEH —RQAF
) AT LTEMNBAK
R - WK AE
HEBRELEEHFHEME-

E R &l
EXRERREEFTE
BINEBZ W B |mEK
(AR FEEN R
FRIE N E R -

H &% im
HihfFHBERIBIERRE
f& 45 7 M 5E33(h) BTt 2
WEARMEEE R
EEZBRBRIEE - ZHK
EHUAERFETELN
BHRTRAZREEER
MEEEEBERMGE -
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28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Directors of the Company approved a Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme on 10 December 2008. On 8
June 2009, the Company conditionally granted certain
Pre-IPO share options to the Directors, senior
management and employees under this Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The exercise of these share options
would entitle two of the Company’s Directors to
subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000 shares of the
Company, and forty of senior management and
employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000 shares.
According to the grant letters signed by the Company
and the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of
each share under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
either at par value of HK$0.1 (four people under this
tranche including two the then directors), or at
HK$1.19, representing a 50% discount to the offer
price of HK$2.38 under the global offering (thirty-eight
people under this tranche). Each option granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting
period of one to five years, commencing from the
listing date and the options are exercisable until 8 June
2019.

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7

FEEeN_ZTZT)N\E+_A
T EIEERAMRBEERE
BEE - R_ZTZTAFX
ANB " KRR BIEEHIR
B\ R AR S BB ST
FmEE 2REEEKE
FEERTETERAR
BENBERE - TEHLHERE
BMER FARAIMBES
R B A QA A 4,200,000
B A R40B = REEEM
EERBARAKG A H
10,332,000 % &9 # #1] o 1R 1% 7
YNGR ESR FEE NG - =0k
FRG BRAARBEEHE
fREFTEIE T SRR G IT
EEAEEMESEIT01AAKE
g ERBEmAES) K
BIL119 B2 BRBEET
B £ (B8 T 2.38 3T :250% (38
ATEBF) - BRI B IXAFE
EREREFERLENEH
BhENFBHAABA LETAH
B —FE20F AR
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28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(continued)

(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options

Scheme are as follows: =R INN
Number of Contractual
Date of grant instruments Vesting period life of options
BFEH BREHE FEH BRESHH
Options granted
to directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
RYTEEmERE e I A AN = —TERNFLA=HBH —F T+
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZTTNAFSNANE ZEENFLAZHBHMF T4
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEZNFERANE —ETNFLA=ZHRF=ZF T+
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZETNAFAANA —ETNFELA=-HBHIUE T4
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZETAFRNANHE —EENFLAZHRFHRSF +4F
Options granted to
employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BT e S0 RE e I A AN = —ERNFLA=ZHBH —F T+
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
I A DA = ZEENFLAZHBIHMF T4
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZEZNFERANE —ETNFLA=ZHRF=F T+
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZETNAFAANA —ETNFELA=ZHBHIUE T4
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZETAFRNANHE —EENFLAZHRFHASF +4F
Total share options
granted 14,532,000
Ry HBREES
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28. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 28. URELEEL URHD A

(continued) ERORZ @

(b) The following table disclosed the movements of the (b) TXBREHRZE_Z—HER
Company’s share options held by Directors and —E—MWNFE+_A=+—H
employees for the years ended 31 December 2015 ITFEEENESEARE
and 2014: ZEE

Number of share options
BRERE

Forfeited Outstanding at  Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at

Outstanding at during 31 December during during 31 December

Option type 1 January 2014 the year 2014 the year the year 2015

R® ® R

—EB-NmF —E2-mF “Z-1%

-A-8 +=A=+-8 +=A=+-8

ERESD HATE FAKRYR HATE FROTE FRERK i R AT
Pre-IPO Share EPWNCES

Option Scheme i AR 3,825,000 (991,000) 2,834,000  (840,000) (340,000) 1,654,000

Exercisable at the end of A 2 HERFK A 1T
the reporting period BB JR 1 2,251,000 2,834,000 1,654,000

Weighted average MEFHITERE

exercise price HK$0.51 HK$0.27 HK$0.62  HK$0.01 HK$1.19 HK$0.77
The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had a N—_ZE—FRF+_A=1+—
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.43 H @ k170 &R I #E
years (2014: 4.43 years). FHFEHE N RILF (=

T—VOFE : 443%F) o

The Group recognised the total expense of 2 -E—NNFE+ A=+

approximately RMB197,000 (2015: nil) for the year —HIEE AEBRERE

ended 31 December 2014 in relation to share options EFHNEBREAALABELEHE

granted by the Company. S # AR 197,000 = F —
TEE: &)
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29. AN 1 B B I AR R

29. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company
2015 2014
—E-RF Z—T—NOF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®FT T ARBEFTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Unlisted investments in RIELETHEB AR
subsidiaries g g — —
Amounts due from subsidiaries NS NCIE @] a 39,372 153,546
39,372 153,546
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable H b & W 5k 239 —
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFRIEA® 1,442 1,042
1,681 1,042
Current liability REBEE
Other payables H {th &~ 3018 3,338 3,928
Net current liabilities REBEERE (1,657) (2,886)
Total assets less current liability EEZERBAEBEE 37,715 150,660
Net assets EEFE 37,715 150,660
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital fi&% A% 256,705 256,639
Reserves 5 b (218,990) (105,979)
Total equity DR 37,715 150,660
Notes: B 5T -
(@  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and not expected to be (a) ZRERSERE  EHAKRTZA

recoverable within the next twelve months.

AR gYE -
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29. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

29. 7K A B) B #& AR R 3R (8

MR (48

(o) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (o) REENEHBFROT -
Share Capital Translation = Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B AR E BEXHE EREE Rit R weE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T ARETT ARETT ARBFT
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—F
—A—H 1,354,742 6,543 (106,953) (1,250,184) 4,148
Recognition of WRUARESEE L
equity-settled LARR D AR
share-based payments 3R — 197 — — 197
Forfeiture of vested 08 U B H DA B e
equity-settled share-based %5 & X AR 15 A&
payments AR - (1,774) - 1,774 -
Total comprehensive 2HEMTEE
expense — — (8,578) (106,746) (110,324)
At 31 December 2014 and W —ZT— P4
1 January 2015 +=-A=+—8
;=T —HhF
—HA—H 1,354,742 4,966 (110,531) (1,355,156) (105,979)
Issue of shares under share 2% 77 i% == HA 4 &+ &)
option scheme (note 28) (B £ 28) 1,627 (1,627) - - -
Forfeiture of vested R U A LA RR
equity-settled share-based % & I LA & 15 &
payments AR - (525) - 525 -
Total comprehensive EEBA(ER)
income (expense) 4% — - 32 (113,043) (113,011)
At 31 December 2015 N-_T—h%F
+=-A=+-—8 1,356,369 2,814 (110,499) (1,467,674) (218,990)
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30. Lease Commitments

30. FH A HIE

The Group as lessee EEEESEERBA
2015 2014
—E-1F Z—T—WmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTT AR®TT
Minimum lease payments paid under BEEERN LR
operating leases in respect of buildings BFENz&REMRE
during the year P E] 8,681 8,722

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REHHR - AKE A HHE D
REBOZ RREIEHE & ALED
HERMT

2015 2014

—F-HfF ZF@OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®EF T ARBT T

Within one year —E PR 5,377 8,655
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF

(BREERFEA) 422 5,757

Over five years HEME 525 555

6,324 14,967

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its production premises and office.
Leases are negotiated for original terms ranging from 1 to
30 years (2014: 1 to 30 years). Rentals are fixed over the
terms of respective leases.

KeHerREASEXNERR
EERBEEABRRSGANEEER
A HRAEHE 2 RERN F—
FE=FF( T —NFE: —F
E-+F) HeAESKHEOHRE
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31. Capital Commitments

32.

Capital commitments for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment at the end of the reporting period not provided in

31. EAREIE

REHZBR TEEMBHREKF
RBROBEABEDE BFE M&

the consolidated financial statements were as follows: EHERNAEZEWT -
2015 2014
—F-Hf Z—F@0OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR T T
Contracted for B &4 7,553 8,221

Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(a)

(b)

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable
to the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group also maintains a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong in accordance with the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to
the Scheme, of which the contribution was matched
by employees and subject to a cap of HK$1,250 from
June 2012 to May 2014 and HK$1,500 thereafter per
employee.

32. R K AR A & &I K

(a)

(b)
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R KR E

RETBEEREBESR  +
BHBAR2EATEA
MENRFEBEEAS 2T
B FOR K8 A A B (TR &t
B -ERAMBEQRARR
TEZ—FEADHLRAKAE
R BRI EEEER
SEREENEEHEKSE -

FEMHE

BEAEHMERAEETE ([
B8 D mBEEIED &R
T AEBNAMBFAEIL
HHEERERLAED
gloELEcEERA
SEHEMEES > AXT
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32.

33.

Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions
(continued)

The Group has no other obligations for payment of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately RMB2,678,000 (2014: RMB3,174,000)

32. 3

represents contributions payable to these plans by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

Related Party Transactions

33.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties:

(@) The following balances were outstanding at the end of

the reporting period:

AREERT EAHEREE - L&
HEBRE IXNEKEEA
BRIKIEAEF] o

EakP 2 8HAIHARE
2,678000(ZF—WEFE: AR
3,174,000) - BN A E B st 2 S50 &
FlEN— BB ZH -

BFEELSXRS

BEAMBRESHSMREE
oh - AEEEESTTIEAME
RS

@ REREWEEKENZ S5
mF :

Amounts due (to)/from
related parties

FE (14) /R B E 75 7R E
2015 2014
—E-F1F Z—T—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETTT
Non-trade related FEZEH
Guangzhou Bawang (note i) BN E (i) (5,308) (4,582)
Trade related ESHEE
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products & M 71 & B 4K & (1,934) (1,626)
Company Limited ERAF(EMNEH]
(“Guangzhou Chenming”) (note iii) (B &Fiii)
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging EMmEReEME (59) —
Materials Co., Ltd. ERRAGI(TEMBEXR]D
(“Guangzhou Qiancai”) (note iii) (B &Eiii)
(7,301) (6,208)
Trade related ESHEE
Guangzhou Friend's Group Information &I &K B &I & 15 & 75 -
Technology Company Limited BRAA
(“Guangzhou Friend’s Group”) ([EMREE]) (F=Ei)
(note i)
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes:

(i) Guangzhou Bawang was effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December
2015 and 2014, the balance due to Guangzhou Bawang mainly
represented rental payable. The balance was unsecured, interest-
free and repayment on demand.

(ii) Guangzhou Friend’s Group was under the control of the close
family members of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company.
The credit term granted to Guangzhou Friend’s Group is 15 days.
The balances were unsecured and interest-free.

(iii) Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the
control of the close family members of the Controlling Shareholders
of the Company. The credit term granted by Guangzhou Chenming
and Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days. The balances were unsecured
and interest-free. As at 31 December 2015, the amounts due to
Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were due within 1
month or on demand (2014: due within 1 month or on demand).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, meeting
and catering services were provided to the Group by
Guangzhou Bawang International Hotel Co., Ltd.
amounting to approximately RMB1,292,000 (2014:
RMB1,076,000). Guangzhou Bawang International
Hotel Co., Ltd. was effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. The
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, raw
materials were purchased from Guangzhou Chenming
amounting to approximately RMB4,700,000 (2014:
RMB6,035,000). The Directors of the Company have
confirmed that the basis of consideration for the
purchase of raw materials is the prevailing market
price.

WB.HAELIRF @)
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0] EMBIAARBIEBRRRE
100%E R HEBE- R=_F— A
FEM_ZT—WF+=_A=+
—A - BEMNBEINEREHE
ThAEMNES - BREALHER
W8 WiEBEREE-

i) BMNFEREHAQRERRKRE
REKBBEZIZH - T EM

FRENERIERABI5K -
HERAEEMREE -

iy EINEAFMEMBERZHEXR
ANEERBRRERE TR E
B B PRSI o /B &N R B E
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BREHERRREENIRE
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=t+—RB ENEMNEBEME
NAE SRR IE R 118 A R B 8 sk
RBNEZ(CT—NEE A
BARE B RiEANEE) -

REE-_ZT—HF+_-_A=
+—RALEFER BMNBE
BB ABIERRAE R ASE
BREMNEERERRBE
A es 4 AR 1,292,000
(ZE—"HFEE: ARK
1,076,000) - 88 T B KB /5
AN A BIE AR AR R 100% B &K
HH - ARAREEFTRA LI
RPDEHBEKBEFIZ
FREBEEGRETH -

REZz-_Z—RHF+_-_A=
+—HLEFEA RMEMNE
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

©)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, raw
materials were purchased from Guangzhou Qiancai
amounting to approximately RMB183,000 (2014:
RMB55,000). The Directors of the Company have
confirmed that the basis of consideration for the
purchase of raw materials is the prevailing market
price.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, utilities
expenses were paid on behalf of the Group by
Guangzhou Bawang amounting to approximately
RMB1,255,000 (2014: RMB1,247,000).

On 9 August 2013, Bawang Guangzhou and
Guangzhou Bawang entered into two lease
agreements, pursuant to which Bawang Guangzhou
leased from Guangzhou Bawang the production plant
and office premises at fixed monthly rental and
management fee of RMB1,120,000 and RMB92,800,
respectively. The terms of the lease under the
agreements are 3 years from 9 August 2013. Details of
which were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 9 August 2013. During the year ended 31
December 2015, approximately RMB14,554,000 (2014:
RMB14,554,000) in aggregate was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, finished
goods were sold by the Group to Guangzhou Friend’s
Group amounting to RMB75,000 (2014: nil). The
Directors of the Company have confirmed that the
basis of consideration for the sales of finished goods is
the prevailing market price.
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(h)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B % (£ &)

The Controlling Shareholders and Guangzhou Bawang
undertook to provide a loan facility to the Group in an
amount up to RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15
March 2013 to 31 December 2015 and was further
extended to 31 December 2017. The long-term loans
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31
December 2017 or earlier as determined by the Group.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
had drawn down HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB31,684,000) under the facility. As
at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the
loans from Controlling Shareholders was approximately
RMB54,946,000 (2014: RMB44,069,000). The
effective interest rate of the loans from Controlling
Shareholders was 5% (2014: 5%) per annum. As at 31
December 2015, the available facilities is approximately
RMB85,058,000 (2014: RMB91,507,000).

Subsequent on 17 March 2016, additional amount of
HK$35,000,000 (equivalent of approximately
RMB29,323,000 has been drawn down by the Group.
The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable by
31 December 2017 or earlier as determined by the
Group.
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33. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of notes (c) and (f)
above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are provided in the “Report of the
Directors” section to the annual report. The related party
transactions in respect of notes (b), (d), (e), (g) and (h) above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
however, they are exempt from the disclosure requirements
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

() Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

3B.EEARS &)

FRREXZERM EHHA

Mo kMR EMEER S Fa
tm%ﬁﬁlJ%MAEFﬁ TE H) B =
RBAFEBRERH - EmRA
FUAEBR I BBREEFERE
[EEEgWmRE]—EF23 - M&F
(b)) () (@) K (h)ig K B B8 E 2
5 HELTMAUNFUAZERARTE
MBER S FBEFBEISHER
% B FIMASIEZIHRE -

() EEEBAREH
AEBERFATEERAR
M EENMT

2015 2014

—E-HE C—ZT—0OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

Short-term benefits %2 Bl fE A 1,854 2,011
Post-employment benefits HEEREA 166 194
Termination benefits R & F 575 —
Share-based payments A RERNRZ S - 164
2,595 2,369

The remuneration of key management personnel of the REEBTFTEESIEAB ZH
Group was determined by the board of Directors, in HESZAFNEEeR K
consultation with the remuneration committee, having ZEPMARBELTEBEETE

regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

& o
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34. Litigations

(@)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B iR (5 &) #2

The Directors of the Company consider that the
contents of the relevant article published by a media
company on 14 July 2010 are defamatory to the
Group and/or amount to malicious falsehood.
Therefore, the Group commenced legal proceedings in
the High Court of Hong Kong in October 2010 against
the media company seeking, inter alia, damages and
an injunction to restrain the media company from
publishing such contents or similar contents. The trial
of the legal proceedings has been completed on 29
August 2015, no judgement has been handed down
by the High Court up to the date of this report.

In prior years, Bawang Guangzhou was a defendant in
a legal action involving the alleged software
infringement and provision of RMB200,000 was
recognised according to the legal opinion.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the District
Court issued a verdict for the lawsuit whereby Bawang
Guangzhou was ordered to pay the software supplier
of an aggregate amount of RMB80,000. Accordingly,
reversal of provision in amount of RMB120,000 has
been recognised as other income for the year ended
31 December 2014.

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former
subcontractor against Bawang Beverage in People’s
Court of Songjiang District of Shanghai (the “Shanghai
Court”) in respect of a dispute in the material
processing contract between the former subcontractor
and Bawang Beverage. In 2013, Bawang Beverage
received a civil order issued by the Shanghai Court,
which accepted the application by the former
subcontractor for property attachment prior to lawsuit
to freeze Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts in the
amount of approximately RMB873,000 or other assets
under the name of Bawang Beverage. In connection
with the lawsuit, one of Bawang Beverage's bank
accounts with an amount of approximately
RMB309,000 was frozen. No accrual has been
recorded by the Group as at 31 December 2013
based on the opinion provided by the PRC legal
counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Beverage.

34.

ERAER R

R

(@)

EERm—HERRRARNZ
Z-TFLATHBEERD
HEARRXERNRY R Y
AEENFB R/ BESD
B-RAY AEEER_-F
—TFE+AERER T AR
RIER- R YNGR R
e HA - BRZEERQA
BEBAY B IEHRZA
BRABUARAR - ZERFR
ER-_ZFE-—AFNANA=-TH
BHEREM BEARNRSH
fhzB BEESFERIL A

78 A AR A7 ) 5 o

EURAFEE BIEMR—
BHERERGEPRAEWRE -
BEEZER BRTAER
# 200,000 A 5T HE ZE 4 ©

BE_ZT-—NWNF+-_A=1
—BLEFER MEER K
TTHEIEMNAREBESRMG

5
HEBRSBEAFTARE
80,000 HE T — M4+
A=+t HLFE #:t
4 A B #120,000 59 51 12 # 3]
DEERNE MU A S -

EUNEFEE —RRDHD
ELEMEEAE%EUL
AR D) B % Al %ﬁ&%
£(¢I)@¢%ﬁ ANETIE
ERBD) 2EH IR #HMIé
ﬂ4%ﬁ% B £E R SR
AR ci —F - HBIR
ﬂ%ﬂTiiiT%E%ﬂ
RE tii&”%T%%
55 78 Y BF B BT EE AR
RAET BERMA
4 A R #873,000 %
M%T%E@§§°E

A

B

W
q“&
B

1] doh 3 WY T -

1

ﬂm

AR 8T AR
TEREEPWRET R
309,000 E RN K X F £
BEFEEREEMRERD
B R-ZE—=F+
+—H8 KEBE M RE
IRAT A 24 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BHE-_ZTZ-—AFt+-A=+—BLEE

34. Litigations (continued)

()

(continued)

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate
People’s Court gave its final ruling that Bawang
Beverage was liable to the former subcontractor for an
amount of approximately RMB643,000 and a legal
cost of approximately RMB19,000. Accordingly,
provision for litigation in amount of approximately
RMB662,000 was recognised as other expense in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and amount of
approximately RMB324,000 was settled during the
year ended 31 December 2014. During the year ended
31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report,
the remaining provision of approximately RMB338,000
has not been settled.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a lawsuit
was filed by Bawang Guangzhou against a supplier in
District Court for the incomplete construction and
unsatisfactory performance of plant and machineries
provided by the supplier. On 2 February 2015, the
District Court issued a verdict for the lawsuit whereby (i)
the purchase contracts for the plant and machineries
were terminated; (i) the supplier should pay Bawang
Guangzhou a sum of approximately RMB22,518,000
representing purchase cost paid and liquidated
damages in addition to interest; and (i) the plant and
machineries concerned should be dismantled and
removed from the factory of Bawang Guangzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Bawang
Guangzhou applied for an injunction against the
supplier in District Court to execute the court order
handed down in 2014. As at the date of this report,
the legal proceedings are in progress. Upon further
negotiation with the supplier, Bawang Guangzhou is
willing to settle the case outside the court. During the
year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date of
this report, no agreement has been signed and no
settlement has been received from the supplier.

34.
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34. Litigations (continued)

)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 25 F B % (£ &)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a lawsuit
was filed by a total of 14 former employees against
Bawang Guangzhou in the District Court in respect of
termination compensation for a total sum of
approximately RMB2,891,000 representing related
severance payments, salaries and social insurance
expenses. As at the date of this report, the legal
proceedings are in progress. Provision of litigation in
the amount of RMB500,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss based on the opinion provided by the
PRC legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang
Guangzhou, representing the maximum compensation
expected by the PRC legal counsel up to the date of
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a lawsuit
was filed by a former employee against Bawang
Guangzhou in the District Court in respect of
termination compensation. On 8 October 2015, the
District Court gave its first ruling that Bawang
Guangzhou was liable to the former employee for a
sum of approximately RMB149,000 representing
related severance payments and salaries. Both the
plaintiff and Bawang Guangzhou lodged an appeal
against the decision. No hearing has yet been fixed for
the appeal. Accordingly, provision of litigation in the
amount of approximately RMB149,000 was recognised
as administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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34. Litigations (continued)

(¢),

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a lawsuit
was filed by a former employee against Bawang
Guangzhou in the Guangzhou Labour Dispute
Arbitration Commission* (“Guangzhou Labour
Commission”) in respect of termination compensation
for a sum of approximately RMB174,000. On 8 April
2015, the Guangzhou Labour Commission gave its
ruling that Bawang Guangzhou was liable to the former
employee for a sum of approximately RMB17,000
representing related salaries. The plaintiff lodged an
appeal against the decision to the District Court. On 15
October 2015, the District Court gave its ruling that
Bawang Guangzhou was liable to the former employee
for a sum of approximately RMB17,000. The plaintiff
did not file further appeal. The amount has been
recognised in administrative expenses and settled
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of 3
lawsuits were filed by the same supplier against
Bawang Guangzhou in the District Court and
Guangzhou Arbitration Commission for a total sum of
approximately RMB1,810,000 and RMB859,000
respectively, representing outstanding retention fees
and construction fees. As at the date of this report, the
legal proceedings are in progress. Accordingly,
provision of litigation in the amount of approximately
RMB2,669,000 was recognised as administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss based on the opinion provided by the PRC legal
counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Guangzhou.

* For identification purposes only
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35. Principal Subsidiaries 35. F EME A
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 RZE—RAER-_T—NE+ =
December 2015 and 2014 are as follows: A=1+—BARQRAETEHRE QA
FHIBEWT
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ paid-up/
establishment and registered Proportion ownership interest and
Name operation ordinary share voting power held by the Company Principal activities
EETR ADRABFEORER
=L RYRGEHE BREX EENRERLH FEEK
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
HiE B HiE EEE3
% % % %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 100 - 100 — Marketing and promotion
of household and personal
care products
Forever Giants Limited BEEXHES EA EHREERAR
EAANERE R
Bawang International Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 — 100 Investment holding,
Group Holding (HK) advertising agency and
Limited trading of household and
personal care products
FITBEBREBRTR BB BT REFER BERER
(BE)ERRA EHEERMERAR
AAEEE®R
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 — 100 Advertising agency and
International Trading trading of household and
Limited personal care products
EEBIERES AR FE BT BHEREREHRERE
KARMEAERER
Bawang Guangzhou The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 — 100 Manufacturing and trading
(note a) of household and personal
care products
FEEM (@) il £ J1.67,500,000 HEREHEEERAR
AAERE R
Bawang Beverage The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 — 100 Inactive during the year
(note a)
FEHE (@) HE 7 7T.180,000,000 FRTED
Note: B 5E
(@  These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (@) WEERBARTEKLNIINEEZE
established in the PRC. WEREERTF
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35. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

35. T EME R T ()

36.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years or at any time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the
Group. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

FREIHARBEEZRRTIE
TEAKRBXRANREENARZ
MEBAR - ARBEERSIEM
HitM B AR ZFERBH<ERB
RITEMAEU IR

RE

FhE-—FEHAN BEML

] P BB R R AT EREETS ©

REMBR RAEAEMLE
EmMEFEANEENBRA -
ZEWMB QR Z X EEBH

I

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHE
Principal activities Principal place of business 2015 2014
FEXEK FTEXEBME —E-HF —E—-MEF
Investment holding BVI 2 2
REZER EERLES
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REZER o

Events After the Reporting Period

(@  As mentioned in notes 1 and 33(h), on 17 March 2016,
loan amount of HK$35,000,000 (equivalent of
approximately RMB29,323,000) has been granted by
the Controlling Shareholders to the Group. The loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31
December 2017 or earlier as determined by the Group.

36. ENRPEREIE

(@

1E 20 7£ MY 3£ 1 X% 33(h)FF AT 1
FEZZE—XNE=ZA+
tH ERBREREET
35,000,000 ( 18 & ® A R #&
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2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—2-HF ZFT-MF ZFT—= —FT-=F %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T AREBTTT AREBFT AR®FT AREBFL
Results E4
Turnover B 232,181 294,649 478,380 555,955 888,909
Loss before taxation 75 Al 5 18 (110,581) (116,457) (143,502) (534,964) (618,537)
Taxation i - — — (82,605) 59,967
Loss for the year KARHER AEAL
attributable to the ZERNEE
owners of
the Company (110,581) (116,457) (143,502) (617,569) (658,570)
Assets and liabilites ¥ERA&®
Property, plant and Y WEREE
equipment 154,999 225,340 294,256 321,619 184,555
Prepaid advertising fee ~ TE 1 & %4 & - - 123 1,454 3,875
Biological assets EYEE 162 175 170 142 1,297
Deferred tax assets FEERIEE = - - - - 82,605
Net current (liabilities) nE(BBEE
assets FE (56,852) (26,364) (29,346) 91,485 758,541
Total assets less current & = 42 1E 7 n &)
liabilities 81E 98,309 199,151 265,203 414,700 1,030,873
Loan from controlling P2 AR AR R AE 3R
shareholders 54,946 44,069 — — _
Deferred tax liabilities BRIERIBAE 2,031 2,031 2,031 2,031 2,031
Net assets EEEE 41,332 153,051 263,172 412,669 1,028,842
Capital and reserves & & i 1%
Share capital A% X 256,705 256,639 256,639 256,639 256,511
Reserves 1 (215,373) (103,588) 6,533 156,030 772,331
Total equity EaEEE 41,332 153,051 263,172 412,669 1,028,842
Loss per share & (E518) & F|
Basic and diluted (RMB)  HE A& [ #54
(AR®) (0.038) (0.04) (0.05) 0.21) (0.19)

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %5 T B R (£ E)E K B R A 7
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* for identification purposes only

#7735

clpcmcpe@peme@pemcmie@pemcmpemcmempemecmpemememempemcmempemepememempemomememempemomempemempememiempemepememel@p el
EoEREEEREEEEEREEEEEREEEREEEEEEREEEEEEEREEEEEREEEREEEEEEEEEREEEREEEEEREEEEEEEE R EE R EREEEEEEEE R

EIE]EIE EIE R R R R R R EE EE RS R EE RS RS RS E e E R E R RS E TS E ] E R E ] B E ] R R R R EE EE R E]



	封面

	目錄

	財務摘要
	公司資料
	主席報告書
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	董事及高層管理人員
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底


